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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS

COUNTY DEPARTMENT -~ CHANCERY DIVISION

REPORT OF HISTORY OF THE EARLY YEARS OF
the Honorable AARON JAFFE on Friday, the 14th day

of May 2004.

ALSO PRESENT:

HON. JAMES F. HENRY,
HON. JAMES FLANNERY,

MR. WALTER ROTH.

Joyce Ledger, 084-001292
Official Ccourt Reporter o
Circuit Court of Cook County

County Department - Chancery Division.
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JUDGE fLANNERY: ill right, Aaron.

We are here téday to get your oral history
or biography, but before we get inveolved with you,
how about telling us a little bit about your
parents, where were they born, where did they come
from, what did they do?

JUDGE JAFFE: Okay, I am going to have to do a
lot of spellings for the court reporter, because my
parents of course came from the old country.

JUDGE FLANNERY: Which is?

JUDGE JAFFE: I'm going to have to do a lot.of
spellings for the court reporter.

"7 My father came from a town called, called
Sukirmotstovetsky, and my mother came from a town
LutzswaniaifLuéz for the brevity of it.

'lActually the name at the time was
Pukinskisla, which.I. can’t spell, but for the
purposes of ‘this examination, ‘let’s just say-.it’s
Telz, T—e—lrz;

All right, and ny father was a tailor,
came from theioia country Qhen he was very, veiyf
young and w;rﬁéd hard, took over his entire.féﬁily:

MR. ROTH: What year? When?

JUDGE JAEFEf Oh, God, it was before the first
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world war.:

So I don’t know exactly what year it was

and he took over the entire family.

He took over his mother and his siblings.

One sibling was already here, but I think he took

over two sisters and one brother.

Oone brother it was like as I said, already

here. My mother came from Lithuania.

She had a big, big family in Lithuania,

androh, there must have been eight or nine siblings

in the family and
United States, in
=r’fhe rest

they all perished

three of them wound up in the
Chicago.
of them stayed in Lithu&hia and

and that in the Holocaust.

So thgre's no survivors'that I know from

Europe. We'have a few in the United States that

actually did remain aftexr World War 1I.

Now, it’s a long question. It’s longer.

than you anticipated.

Now my mother and father were both

previously married and they were -- my father was:aff

widower and my mother was a widow. My father had

one son.

My mother had one son and they came
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together énd they married and fhen they héd one
child and that was me and I’m the only common child
of the marriage and some people say I am as common
as you can possibly get, but I have two brothers
and of course we were raised as brothers.

As a matter of fact there was no
difference and we were very, very close.

JUDGE FLANNERY: Where did your parents live in
Chipago before they married and when they met and
when they were first married? “

- JUDGE JAFFE: Well, we lived and I was born in
what was called thé GVS, the "great vest side"
which was a, you know, a heighborhood that was --

MR. ROTH: The Maxwell Street area?

JUDGE JAFFE:'-Pardon? |

MR. ROTH: The Maxwell Str;ét-area?

JUDGE JAFFE: ©No, no, we lived around oh, 16th

and Spaulding is where I started school and then T

;wént;tq school at Bryant which Waé at, I think,

13th and Kedvale if I am not mistaken and I went to

Méréhall High School and -~

' 'MR. ROTH: .What year at Marshall, can I ask?
JUDGE JAFFE: I was at Marshall High School

from 1944 to 1948.
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JUDGE FLANNERY: What was the ége difference
with your brothers?

JUDGE JAFFE: Well, my brother, Mark, is eight
years older than I am and ny brother, Nate, was 12
years older. My brother, Nate, died about two
years ago.

My brother, Mark, now resides in
Ccalifornia and, you know, so I am the only brother
left in Chicago.

JUDGE FLANNERY: What can you tell us about
your childhood, grade school, growing up in the
neighborhooﬁ, any activities and hobbies?

JUDGE JAFFE: Well, I have to explain, when yoir
say hobbies, because when I was a kid, the kids
were not-és - “

JUDGE FLANNERY: Spoiled.

<  JUDGE JAFFE: Well, no, not. as spoiled, but

also téeymWeren’t activity driven.

~Today kids have;té have, you'ﬂaye to be
orientgd. You have to go to dance lessons.

You have to go toitﬁét type ofalesson and
so on and so forth and w; of course were not that

driven.

You know, we didn’t'have television and we
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didn’f have the concept of‘you have té have a
television in every roon.
We talked to our classmates, made house
calls in those days.
For Judge Henry those are ancient times,
but I remember them, but when you say so, Ve would
-~ the neighborhood was a very interesting place

to be and because you really lived in the

neighborhoed and you knew all your neighbors and

basically they came from the same background and’'my

- father was the president of a orthodox synagogue, a

small orthodox®synagogue, and a lot of, you know,
the social 1ife reveolved around that and around the
family.

It ﬁas family at the temple, the
neighborhood, and I am nothgoing to -- fi?st let me
get _.to your guestion, bu£ bgsicallgthl went to
school. | |

As I said, Howland was the first school

+hat I went to and then the second school I went to

. was Bryant.

I. graduated from Bryant and I went to

Marshall High School and at Marshall I was on the,

' on the school paper, I was the sportise, sports
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editor of £he péper.

I was responsible for more people getting
letters than Clay Davis, than anybody in the entire
world because I would always put them at the game,
in my own mind would put them in the game and the
coach reading the paper would say, this guy was 1in
the game.

I have got to give them a letter, so he
would give them a letter.

We had children in the neigﬁbqrhood and we
played the games that, you know, played baseball or
whatever it was, and by and large we played on the
streets. T

We played softball and just as an

_interesting aside to me, you know, we once had a

game of softball.

- We always, you know, there wergé&pt things
like -~ we didqft'have little league, thihgs like
thét‘4_1t was just games from guys in:tp¢ “
neighborhood.

o We wefe playing this baseﬁaii game and it
was thé last of.the ninth, I think it was
softball. I said baseball.

! I meant softball and there was no bunting,
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neighborhoed newspaper?

oka&, and I céme up to bat and ‘the last of thé
ninth, I think with bases loaded and two out, and
it was a full count on me and they pitched me a
pall and I swung as hard as I could, hit the ball,
but it just dribbled out in front of the plate.

The guy from third scored and I ran to
first base and that was a big dispute and they said
no bunting and my team maintained that was as hard
as I could hit and they won the argument, so to my
dismay, but what we, you know, I always_enjoyed
ijt. I wrote for the Garfield Inch which was a
newspaper.

T did some of their sports, high school
sports for that which was certified and they would
give me a couple of dollars for an article.

| JﬁDGE HENRY: is that a JewiShu;ewébaper or
JUDGE JAFFE: No, that was .':1:ne:'L_;;;_j.hborhoc;_d)j
newspépegﬂ__ #

I will tell you that in my famiiy; in my
house, ﬁf mother aﬁd father, the main ‘language was'
reailQ‘Yiadish and so, you know, tohtﬁis;day I
speak Yiddish rather well.

i Well, I would say rather well compared to
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almosf everyone else; yougknoﬁ.

When I was, it was when I was in the
legislature I think I could speak Yiddish better
than any other menber.

There the second best Yiddish speaker was
a manrby the name of Taylor Ponce who was an
African American and he and I am used to sit and
talk Yiddish together and he was a delightful man.

JUDGE FLANNERY: Just one guick one. 7

What day were you born; your birthday?

JUDGE JAFFE: May 16, 1930.

I was born at Mount Sinai Hospital and the
att;;aing doéﬁor was Dr. Halburt, aﬁa;l know
because that’s what my mother told me. She never
lied, okay, sé but --

MR;tROTH: When you went to Marshali, waé-it
still predominantiy-Jewish?

JUDGE JAFFE: Oﬁ, yeé; it was predominently
Jewish. | ' 7

MR. ROTH: No school high holidays?

JUDGE qAﬁFE} oh, I dbn't know if they hddf?

school or not.  No one was there. !

MR. ROTH: Did you belong to the orthodox

synagogue you refer to? o
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JUDGE TAFFE: Well, of course, I went to the
temple with my father and I went to Hebrew school.
MR. ROTH: Where?
JUDGE JAFFE: I went to Hebrew school.
It was at one of the Hebrew schools on
Hamlin Avenue. I forget'the name of it.
At those times the teachers were not as
sophisticated as they are now.
MR. ROTH: Mgrshall was very hoted for its
bésketball team at the time.
JUDGE JAFFE: Yes.
MR. ROTH: VYou were involved as a newspaper
reporggr. . e
JUDGE JAFFE: Oh, sure I was the sports editor
and as a mafper?of fact whgn iﬂwas - duringﬁmy}
first yeé; at Marshall, they had, you know,wéhéy
had two different typgs of teans. t .
They. had the lights and the heaQies and
one was five;féotgsix and ﬁhder and as far as ﬁhe_
five foot six and under, Marshall’s high school
basketball-teaﬁ.éid not 1o§é a game for four
years. T : S
They wept 9é games without ever losing a

basketball game.’ o

io
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"JUDGE HENRY: is that still é record do you
know?
JUDGE JAFFE: I have no idea, probably was. and
-- pbut that was the lights, you see.

Later on they sort of did away with that
and in my senior year I know, we WOn 31 city and
the basketball player who was prominent on that
team was a guy by the name, Irv Morris I guess and
Irv wound up in the NBArand he played, I think he
plaved for the Philadelphia team if T éﬁ not
mistaken, but --

ME. ROTH: I went to Hyde Park Highj as an
aside, and M;}shall was a principal enemy. 7

JUDGE JAFFE: Yes, well, Marshall, yes, Marshall
always had a rlvalry w1th Austin whlch was also on
the west side and Marshall would kill them in

baskethall and Austln would klll us at football.

I don‘t think we ever won a football game, . .

'bqt basketball was;the sport there.
JUDGE FLANNERY: When did you graduate from
high school? ) ;
JUDGE JAFFE: £ éfddﬁated in 1948.
I graduated Januafy 1948 because at that

time they had, you know, graduation twice a year.

11
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They had Jaﬁuary and 5ﬁne'ahd_1 was a
January graduate.

JUDGE FLANNERY: Did you go right to ceollege.
then?

JUDGE JAFFE: I did, you know.

JUDGE FLANNERY: And where did you go to
college.

JUDGE JAFFE: Well I had a, well, I started at,
Navy Pier was the University of Illinois, Navy
Pier, which was a peculi#f‘place to go to ‘school.

If you have ever talked to anybody who
went to Navy Pier, you had the long pier-and, you
know, your clasges could be four blocks away up=-and
down the pier, but it was -- I went there for about
a ygafand a half, I youid say, and --

JUDGE HENRY: 'HQ; did you get té the pier from
your house? | o

Did you take.public transpbrtation? pid
you eyér get a ride from other guysﬁin the
neighborhood? |

| Did you have ybuf own car?

JUDGE JAFFE: No;‘I'didn’t have my own car
until I was married.and had a child.

See, cars were as a matter of fact, in the

12
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ﬂeighbbrhbod where I wés growinglup théfg'were very
few people who had cars.

My father never drove. We -= chicago was
always an easy place to get around and we used to
go on the old streetcars and the old streetcars
were, if you know, with the platform in the back.

I feel like I am an historian now.

My kids ask me things iike, gramps, and
they look at me like I am sort of bizarre, but
going to hiéh school, wheniyqu go to high school
you wouid have people hanging all over the
streetcar.

Kids woifld jump on the back and the front
and the side.

‘MR.-ﬁOTH: Do you ;emémber what courses you
took at Navy Pier? o h

JUDGE JAFFE: wéll see, that's a big
quesﬁlon Now let me tell yom why | -

In those days, they dld not have SATs and
all those sorts of things and so they gave me an
aptltude test and they sent me in for an aptitude
test with my counselor, who 1ooked th;ough her
pages and she sailid, "What wouid you like to be?"

And I always wanted to be a writer and so

13
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bar.™

she lookKed at my papers and studied them and said

to me, "Oh, gee, I am sorry, but you have no

aptitude for writing at all."

She said that and so, "I don’t, I don’t
think_that would be a great thing for you.™"

She said, "What else would you like to
do?" I said, "Maybe I would like to either, you
know, go into history or political science because
I like history and political science and perhaps I
caﬁld teach," and she looked throu&h her papers
again, and she said, "I am sorry qgain."

She said, "But you have no aptitude at all
for history and political science.and it was just,
would just be terrible and you have no aptitude for
teéaching either. "

So‘éhe said, "Okay, géid‘ﬁhat else Qbuld

you 1ige?" I said, "wWell, méybe I should becone a

;_lawyer.“

I hgd an uncle who was a lawyer, my:J
fat£ér’s youngest brother and she l;dked at the
thing and said, "Oh, no, no, no," she said, viaw
éould be terr%ble, You would ﬁe%@r%ggt into a law

school and if you did yvou would never pass the

i4
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They were Qéry’déiidate in those days, the
way they handled people.

She said, "Well, what’s next?" I said, "I
must tell you when I came in here I was feeling
pretty good and now I feel like the world’s worse
reject."

I said, "Why don’t you look at your magic
papers there and you tell me what I should go

into?" And I was a little bit afraid of what she

‘would say.

She wgnt through her magic papers. Sge
said, "You know, I think medicine would be good for
you," - and I said to her, "Medicine for me?"

I said, "Are you aware of the fact that if
you cut your finger on that piece 0of paper that you
are handliﬁé tight now aﬁd a drop of blOdeéalis on

the tabIeL I711 pass out, and you are teilinq mne

mediciné?"

Sq I‘sort of tooﬁ a general course;r‘I
took some zooloéf;courses té satisfy my advisor,
you see, and I would give 'anti-vivisection speeches
in the bioibq§'90qrse, but it was -- i ;'7'

MR. ROTH: Did you take any history courses?

JUDGE JAFFE; Oh, yes, I took a lot of history

15



10
11
12
13

14

- 15

ie

17

.18

19

20

21

22

23

24

courses.

MR. ROTH: What kind of history?

JUDGE JAFFE: I loved history. I remember my
history teacher from the Pier was a man by the name
of Nicholson.

MR. ROTH: I knew him very well. He was a
tremendous guy.

He was the best history teacher in the
entire world, just magnificent.

JUDGE HENRY: What history courses did he
teach? |

JUDGE JAFFE: Well, he, taught European history.
.z  MR. ROTH: Right. .

JUDGE JAFFE: But after European history I took
ancient history, then I took American histery.

AMﬁTrRGTH: Engliéﬁ, who did youiha;; far that?
Do yburremembe;? ‘ L

V:JUD;'C{}-EVJAFF:J:':i:'}j I dOn’t"remember,:butiyichols;ﬂI
will always remember.,

--You;kgow thererare certain teachers?ﬁﬁat
always sticg'out in my mind, like in my mind;
fn,law school when I went to DéP&Ulfihhad
a teacher whose name was Curran, Honest John

Curran, anng loved Honest John Curran because he

16
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would teach in a very uniqﬁe style.

He was-a very successful trial lawyer at
one time, but he gavg it up I think for health
reasons and he would say to you, "Okay, for the
next class sessionhread Pages 45 to 65," and so Yyou
would read 45 to 65 ;hé you would brief all the
cases andﬂéverythinqsyéu had to do and then you get,;
to class and he would say to you, "We are going to
go far?hef at Page 162;ﬂ_and the class would get
all exited; A

"what do you mean Page 162?2" And his
attitude was well, you'knew,‘you can learn from the
book ahy time. I wan% to teach you how to think
and he was just --

MR. ROTH: What 4id he teach?

JUDGE JAFFE: Pa;@on?

MR. ROTH: What did he teach?

'JUDGE JAFFE: He taught, as a matter of fact he

taught eguity.

MR. ROTH: Just like you.

JUDGE JAFFE: Equity and trust and he always
had something going with the library and at the --

by something going, the liberian whose name was

Kelly would love to get -- lay the cases and bring

17
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them to the different professors and instructors
and they would always, You know, thank him for it.

He was a very, very nice guy, but with

Honest John Curran he would bring him the cases and

-Curran would say, "I already read them," and would

4

-tell him what the cases was even if they came down

four minutes ago and this would’ drlve Kelly crazy,

: fand during the years-that I went to DePaul, all he

dld,was try to, you know, give Curran one case that

curran had not read, put he_ could not do, it, you

know, jUSt if, you know, but there are teachers

that “have an impact on you.

- JUDGE FLANNERY. Did you say you were at the

pier for only a year and a half?
JUDGEﬁgAFFE: Yes.

JUDGE FLANNERY: And then what?

JUDGE JAFFE: And then I -- we moved to

‘california for, you know, awhile and when we moved

to California.

Tt was -- I had an uncle who was my
mother’s brother, my Uncle Phil, and I am going to
get into a little, you know, family skeletons in
the closet you see, and you have to understand that

they were from the old school and his wife had

‘18
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passed away and he had owned a business, @& grocery
store and so on and so forth in LA. |
And ny mother was -~ he had one daughter

py the name of Rochelle, who ig my cousin of |
céurse, nd she had gotten married to a gomeone wWho
wasn't the sharpest stick in the world you.see,-and
=0 my mother would, number one was’ concernedfabout
my.Uncle fﬁfl pbecause she didn’t think hercquld get
along without a woman in the house:- o

““fnat was the old fashiéned-thiggﬂand Pﬁil

had wanted someone to go into pusiness with my

. father and SO he sald njell, why don’t you come

out to california and stay heré'and I have a place
for you," and. so on agg so forth, wand Aaron can go
to college out here,"Jand of»course his son-in-law
is in pusiness with my dad aﬂd opens up, you know,
this cleanlng store and tallor shop and my mother
prevailed upon my father to do that and we moved
out there for a year and a half antil ny nother
could marry off her brother pecause the business
didn’t go to well because when I -- nY cousin’s
hushand was at the racetrack more than he was at
the store and so I went to school there for a year

and a half:

19
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and

1 went to the City Cdlleqe of Los Angeles

I went to UCLA and then I came back here to

chicago and my parents came pack a little bit later

i

pecause I wanted to go to school here and went to

DelPaul.

il

JUDGE FLANNERY: pid you graduate from college?

JUDGE JAFFE: Did I graduate from college? I

graduated from law school, yes.

law

the

JUDGE FLANNERY: From:DgPaul you graduated?
JUDGE JAFFE: Yes. |

MR. ROTH: What year? Whét‘year?

JUDGE JAFFE: You are-tglkihg when did I get my
degreé? |

JUDCE FLANNERY: Undergrad.

JUDGE JAFFE: See, in those &QYS I was one of
lasf where you could get into =--

MR. ROTH: Law schoél.

JUDGE JAFFE: -- law school without having a

degree, so many years that you didn’t have to have

a degree, so that's what I did.

MR. ROTH: When did you graduate law school?
JUDGE JAFFE: I graduated in 1953.

JUDGE HENRY: Where was the law school located

‘at that time?

20
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JUDGE
pbuilding.
JUDGE

JUDGE

sAFFE: oOn Lake street. It’s a great

HENRY: IS that buildingd still there?

JAFFE: 1 don’t think so.

MR. ROTH: That a big dean. pean Taft.

_JUDGE
JUDGE
andAaﬁte}
‘have liﬁe

JUDGE

¢

JAFFE: Dean Taft was a §reé£ guy -
FLANNERY: Befofé we get ihté 1aw school
jaw school, what type cf jobs did you

in high school or college ortin#between?

JAFFE: You panme it, -I-did it..

vou know I atarted -- in those days we
14 yeaXrs old.

were: 13,

T used to rake, after schooi 1 would get

on a bus and .go down the street and down here,

downtown actually just outside of downtown and T

wofﬁed for a mail order company and I aid packing

you Know.
JUDGE

JUDGE

in the mail order company .

1 worked for the Washington shirt company,

HENRY ¢ As a model?

JAFFE: Well, you could -- do you

remember Washington shirt Company at all?

of stores

The Washington cshirt Company had a nunber

and they were haberdasheries and they had

21
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1 collars‘and

o are about

would,
alking in wh

hese people W
s and we would
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1ars and they
for then for

n New York cane

g thelr collar

107 year
heﬁ the col would attach them ¢
o

get t
£ and 1 worked

a long Periog

thelr shlr

7 of time, and flnally a company fro
8 in and sald, wphis is 2 yery old fashloned
o company - you are really not makindg enough mc”ie&i.‘
10 Theﬁﬁbouqht them out and they said. "We
-11 will reach you how to run a haberdashery store
B . Wwithin three years they had qooe bankrtqyt
quys wanted stlff,collars, Theﬁ?

e thoseé old

13 pecaud
’{A ajan’t want gport ehirts and scuff 1ike that,
15 MR - ROTH: po you remember the name of the magl
16 ordetr company?
17 JUDGE JAFFE: pardon?
18 ¥R. ROTH: 5o you remember the name Of the nmi1
19 ordet company? )
20 JUDGE JAFFE: The mail order company WaAS —e
21 it comes tO mind T will remenbel it. tE
22 MR. ROTH: Do you rememnber the address, RAaronp
'

where it was located?
n FultOn
Street

23
1 think it was ©

24
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so when you knocked on the door, you had

to get in and buy a book, he would look you over

and if he 1iked you, he would press +he buzzer and
i

you would come in, Yyou see, and this is much later

‘when my mother was an invalid.

4

T would go there andii‘WOuld talk to him

and 1 loved to talk to thié'guy and I would say te

"him, "Do you have any boOOKS in,{iddish?"

Now thefé were no boékg in viddish being

published at that timew -

I think there are now, but there were not
at that tinme and he would say, HGo.in the back room
and take a 100k,"™ and 1 woufd go in the back YoOom.

These were yiddish books. I can read &
1ittle bit of yiddish, not és well aéal could speak
yiddish, and 1 would pick out the books that I
thought my mother would like.

I have a couple of those books 1eft. As a
matﬁer of fact I have & couple of pbooks in yiddish
by'Ether Matheson, you Seé&, Ether Matheson.

I just don’t give themn away. 1 can’t read
them. I Jjust keep them as 2a ﬁemory of my mother.
so I would pick up 21l these books and I would get

a stack like, eight books, and I would bring it out
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to him, and he would say to me, "These books aie
for your mother; right?" |
i Aﬁd 1 would say, nyes, they are for my
. :
mother." He said, "Okay. this one 1is a quarter.
This ‘one will be 30 cents." |
This one will be, top was 50 céhﬁs: T
would walk out for a couple of dollars'ﬁifh a whole
stadk of pooks for my mother.
THen he also hadwneﬁ pooks there which
w;?g narked with prices and I would go ovéﬁ and I
would see a bdok that T would like and say tﬁe,book
was $18, yaa‘know.
T would take it dut and I would say, I

want this book, and he would look at the book and

say, "okay, for this boolk, itrs $22."

1 would say, "Wait a second, you know,
this‘is $18." He said, "But it’s not for your
mother. 1t’s for you." T+ was great, -you know, to

go into that bookstore.

JUDGE HENRY: pid that book seller speak
yiddish?

JUDGE JAFFE: pPardon?

JUDGE HENRY: pid that book seller speak

Yyiddish?
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JUDGE JAFFE: He spoke both Yiddish and --
JUDGE FLANNERY: Can I say something?
When ydu went to DePaul most of the
students were Cathélic, weren’t they?

JUDGE JAFFE: Well, in the rest of the school

i
1

it was, but in the_iéw“school -
MR. ROTH: In the law school.
JUDGE JAFFE: .-- there were, there were a lot
of Jewisﬁ students ih_the law school.
i For gome reason I think at that time I

think most Jewish people who went to law school

" went to DePaul.

I don’t knaw why, but that seemed to be
the case.

A MR. ROTH: Did fou get involved in politics at
all‘while you wentﬁto law school?

JUDGE JAFFE: Well, I have always had a
féscination for politics and I was born in the 24th
Ward.

So how could you not have a fascination
for politics and then of course at one point we
moved across the street.

Pulaski was the dividing line between the

23rd and the 24th ward, so the 24th Ward was east
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of Pulaski and the 23rd ward was west of it and I
think we moved to Komenski which was just one block
west of the 24th Ward which was the 23rd Ward and

Bill Moloda who was the old clerk of_the —-= gclerk

. . of the municipal court or I forget which one it

was.

He was the'committeeﬁan of that era and

that was when I was in law school and I remembex

bécoming the ass;stént precinct éaptain for well,
for a man by the name of 8y-Siegel.

| 1 was going to law school and he was about
aémhiq as this table, but I walkedfaround the

precincts with him and earned a great deal from him

- and he was just, just a fun guy. He knew everybody

b

in the precinct.

MR. ROTH: Did you ever meet Jake Arvey inn
those days?

JUDGE JAFFE: My father met Jake Arvey.

My father was very funny when he wasn’t
over in the temple or synagoéue, but my father Knew
all the politicians in the area and as a matter of
fact my father during his lifetime was offered
political‘jobs because he was the president of this

temple for SO long, but my father never, never
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wou

14 take a political job because he wanted the

politicians to be indebted to him so he would get

stu

£ff for ?istynagoque and so my father, never,

never, did anything in that area, but he knew all

-of

"tim

them and on the west side.

MR. ROTH: "How about Judge Marovitz for ‘that

e? Is that somebody you would' have met?

JUDGE- JAFFE: My father Xknew him. I didn’t

"xnow Judge Marov1tz at .that time-.

MR.: ROTH: Do you know the 24th Ward rlght off

the cuff? That’s the ward that was 99 percent for\

"ROO

sevelt.

JUDGE JAFFE: Yes.

MR. ROTH: And Jake Arvey was the controller,

R

right?

guy

ama

JUDGE JAFFE: Right, but when I went with this

, Sy Siegel, for the first time it was just an

zing thing and I have to tell you a story about

that, right, and the story was Wwe went to a house.

door and we went int

woman would who was Vvery elderly, he said,

is

1t was a bungalow and we knocked on the

o the house and Sy said to the

"How

-=% Jet me just pull a name out of the air.

"How is John feeling?"

29
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minﬁtes to convince me that’he was actually
serious.- |

So I went with someone else, We go over

;
to the house and his wife had him all dressed up,
propped up, on the porph.

I think rigo;-ﬁortis had already set in
and we cariied him fFom the house to the car into
the polling place .and he Yoted or somebody voted
for him, whatever the cése may be, had some help,
assista;ce-and we..took him home and I think he must
have died a day later, but he -- I think he really

did want to vote and thosewwere loyal voters.

JUDGE FLANNERY: What about -- we are going to

~change for a second here.

What about Chérlotte?-ﬁhen did you meet
her? Wﬁen did you qetsmarried? )
JUDGE JAFFE: oOkay, well, I met Charlotte when
I waé going to Navy Pier.
Charlotte is my wife as you know, and we
went on our first date. We were fixed up.
JUDGE FLANNERY: How old were you at that time?
JUDGE JAFFE: I think that I was, I was

probably 19 and she was probably 18 or I was 18 and

she was 17 and we -- she had a friend who was going
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"on a date with someche that sherhad met at Union

‘pier or to that effect and she didn’t want to 9go

arone and he had a friend which was Mary and she
prevailed upon charlotte to go.

. We had never met and so here I was going
qgtlon this blind date and in those:ddys, you know,
no one had television. | |

1t was always radio and -I came toO her
house and being a very bolite younqimen T said to
her fethef upon meetinq-him,etalked to him for an a
11tt1e blt and he said to me, he said, he said,
“Qan't you see I an llstenlng to GangeBusters?“

And that was the issue. My father-in-law
was really a very, very nice guy-

We went out and the flrst date wefﬁad wve
wound up in Skokie where I ended up living after T
was married.
_ In those days it was a real trek and we
went out to skokie with this other couple and 1
don’t think charlotte 1iked me then.

You would have to check with her, see if
she likes mne enough. We have only been married for

over 50 years.

JUDGE- HENRY: Probably doesn’t like you.
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JUDGE FLANNERY: We will get her on the phome.

JUDGE HENRY: Where did charlotte live?rr

JUDGE JAFEE:' charlotte lived around Division
gstreet and hef father worked for the post offfce

and she and. her mother and grandfather had a llittle

4

business.
When I say it was little, -1t was really

1ittle. I mean it was sort of hard times. They

~.made mops.

“It wag called the grand olad Mopﬁgompan§-

which was never open, bhut they had certain

cusﬁomers theyrwoﬁid make these mops and somet imes.

1 would deliver them for them.

JUDGE HENRY: When you went to Skokie what 4id
you do in skokie? o

Wwhat- was the purposenin going there? What

was your --= ;

JUDGE FAFFE: 1 think at;that time they had an
eating place in gkokie that was sort of a Bar«B_Qué
place or something that the kids were going.

JUDGE FLANNERY: pid you drive up there? Diad
you take public transportation?

JUDGE JAFFE: Well actually this individual had

a car, SO we drove up there.
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you were married and‘when were you married?.-
JUDGE JAFFE: Well, actually we went, we were
|
going together for three}years, four years whatever
it was.

I got married.rigﬁt”after my 21st

birthday. I was 21 this May and I got married in
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June and Charlotte was. 19 at the time and it was a

different time.

We lived with our parents. I mean she

son, Alan, was

S0.

e

Charlotte live?

“1ived for a while. We lived with my folks and for

a while we lived with her folks and actually, ny

porn before I got out of law school

JUDGE HENRY: Where on Division Street did

JUDGE JAFFE: Well, she lived, when I say

Division Street she lived at 1139 North Francisco,

and --

MR. ROTH:

That’s west, west division.

JUDGE JAFFE: Pardon?

MR. ROTH:

San Francisco 1is west.

JUDGE JAFFE: No, Francisco is what?

JUDGE FLANNERY: Near California.
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MR. RdTH: Yes;
JUDGE JAFFE: And just south of Division
Str%et, right by Humbolt Park.
JUDGE HENRY: Was that a Jewish ieighborhood at
tbe,time?
| _jdbGE JAFFE: Not really.
yMﬁ. ROTH: TPeople just were begfhning to move
outrof_Laanale on the west side, right?:
JﬁDQE JAFFE: Yes. |
JUDGE FLANNERY: A;d you knew a 10£ of people
who lived in the Lawndale area were beginﬁing to
move dutfbf-the west side. .
JUDGE JAFFE: Well they started, but --
MR. ROTH: _Yes.
JUDGE JAFE&: The west side was, ?ou know;TI
thing_it was a great ;rea. Well, we were kids.
There was no air conditioning. Everybkody
used  to go out and éleep in the city-parks and
stuff like that.
MR. ROTH: Did you remain religious in your
observances?
JUDGE JAFFE: Well, did I remain religious? It

all depends on what you =--

MR. ROTH: 1In your observations, kosher and
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stuff like that?

JUDGE JAFFE: When T was first married we did

keep kosher, but later on we sort of drifted away

from that.

MR. ROTH: Did you continue to belong to the

synagogue?

JUDGE JAFFE: Oh, vyes.

! abtﬁally'belong to the temple now;-ﬁutrl'

have gone from -- T 'went from orthodox to judicial

when we were married and lived in West Rogétrs Park

and then we went to a reconstructionist synagogue

and today we belgngﬁto a reform synagogue and I

like them all.

I mean I like them all, but I now go to a

synagogue that would drive my father crazy.

I mean T go to a synagogue where we have a

. woman rabbi and a woman president of the

congregation, a-woman who is the head of the
religious school.

MR. ROTH: You have given up all your
principles.

JUDGE JAFFE: Pardon?

MR. ROTH: What'’s the name of it?

JUDGE JAFFE: Well, I have got to tell you,
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father, my father although he was orthcdox, he was
not, you know; ultra orthodox by any stretch of the
imagination. i

He did work on Saturday. The reason he

worked on Saturday is he'had_g family to support,

but my father was very opeﬁ minded and I think that

as a matter of fact T never -- when he had his

' store on Crawford Avenué, ﬁust in back of the store

" was a Saint Sinbaras Church and’my father did.all

the cleaning and repai?iﬁq for the people in the

church and if you walked into my father’s store and

you would have,-—.you would seeig Catholic priest.
in the store and they called him by his ¥Yiddish
name .. o
It was Kivie, when Saint Sinbaras had a
carnival which they had every year, we were
absolutely required to go to the carnival, you
know, because the church neéded money and it was
our responsibility, YOu know, they were our
neighbors and so we did that and -- but I remember
going to Hebrew school and as I say we had the
old~-type Hebrew school teacher and they would hit

you with sticks if you pronounced something wrong

or did something, you know, that you shouldn’t,
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nade a mistake or something like that.

They were tough,:éxcept I had one teacher
whose namé was Goldberg and I will never fbrget
Goldbefg because Goldberg -- all the digits on his
hand were normal except for his thumb. b

:The thumb on his riqht hand, thé!thumb on
his right hand was shaped like a salamie at the
end?rl

I was a tremendous £humb. I have never
ségﬁﬁa thumb'like that and Goldbef?t“when he would
go around the élass and ask guestions and if yéu
did somqfhigé wrong, he WouldAtake this mésgzve
thumb and he would flip if and hit you right
between the eyes,mith the thunb.

You were paralyzed for aﬁout three minutes
and everybody feared Goldberg’s thumb but go ahead.

JUDGE FLANNERY: That thumb story may be a good
poeint ts take a break for just a couplerminutes.
Is that okay?
(Whereupon, there was a brief
pause in the proceedings.)
JUDGE FLANNERY: All right, Aaron, what I
wanted to, would like to do with the notes I have

is I would like before we get into your law
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Strange how you remember certain things
and dértain things you don’t remembef:at all and we
lived on the thirdiflbor of the apartment. .

Alan was ﬁlready born and my daughter,
Alisa was born while I was there and we were not ,
wealthy.

| I mean, you know, when I got oﬁt of law
school, I earnéd}:I was a person who earned a lot
of moneé. I earned about $30 a week,. 1

In those days-thaf was not bad because’
they were doing you a favér by giving you a job and
we’ll_get into thatiiaézr on, but we 1ivéd on the
third floor and we had very, very liftle furniture.

I remember that thefgoctor that delivered
my £irst two children was actually nmy father’s
cousin and I remember when he came back from World -
War II, his name was Sid, and he was a lot of fun
and at the tine afﬁer the second birth of =-- the
birth of my second child that was my daughter,
Alisa, A~l-i~s~a, and we had, the furniture, we had
I think we had a bedroon.

We had an open up couch and I mean it was
a very, very sparse thing.

My wife had come back from the hospital to
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lived there for

take. care of baby and she was having, ybu Kknow,

that depressive period and so she was feelingrdown
and she called my father’s cousin, Sidney, Jjust to
talk to him and say and tell him she wasn’t feeling

great and 'she was really sort of down and what not

and being the great doctor that he was, hé was a

goocd doctor, he said to her, "You know what you

_ought to do? You ought to rearrange your furniture

and go out and buy yourself a hat," at which'she

broke:a;wn and Stgrted to cry, you kngw: but so'wg
Va'while and then we moved to West -
Rogers Park:. J

We moved to 2650 Greenleaf. You know that
and we moved into an‘apartment building and the
apartment building was owned by an old man and his
wife and tﬂéy liﬁed on the secpnd floor.

VNQW, it was sort of a funny relationship
because I never hardly talked to the landlord.

Charlotte would talk to him and they
always had this, this relationship in which they
played cat and mouse with each other, you see and
she would always threaten him with me because I was

a lawyer and so he thought I was a monster and if

he and I were walking down the street and I was
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coming, he would cross over the street.

‘He would never, never talk to me and
Charlotte of course would tell me all that.

We had this apartment and we wanted to fix
it up and when we wanted to do some things with it
and the lease was cominé due in, I don’t know four
or five months, and so Charlotte talked to him and
said, "We want to déithésé things is it allrright

if we do them? We want to know that the-lease will

be renewed."
And he said, "Sure, do them." So we did
them and. when it came time for our lease to be

renewed, I guess his wife was not feeling too well

and he wanted the first floor apartment that we

just fixed up and he said, well, I will give you
the second floor.

Well, he was sort of finicky and so was
his wife and we imagined with two kids running
around upstairs, it really wouldn’t be good so we
decided to move, you see, and Charlotte then
insisted that he pay for some of the improvements
and they had this long battle going between the two
of them which I never was involved in and I think

it was great sport for both of them, and we were =
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should have never have been --
MR. ROTH: Is it whiskey? |
JUDGE JAFFE: I will be all r‘ight. I guess T
can go on.
b Where was I7? | SR

(Record read as requested.)
JUDGE FLANNERY: 507
 JﬁDGE JAFFE: So we were ﬁoving odt of the
aparfhent_and they were still negotiéiing, see, and’
there-Was a huge mirror in t;gﬁfront rdom and the
mirro;@was attached to the wall.

U We couldn’t take the mirroer ényway.

However we had bought some of the stuff from the
previous tenmant and on that bill of sale he-had the

mirror and she knew the landlord wanted that mirro¥

aﬁﬁ so she said to him, you wouldiﬁave to

understand most of the stuff is on the truck.

You know what happens now. We are taking
down the mirror and he said, "Well, you can’t take
down the mirror," and she said, "Well, it’s on our

bill of sale and here’s the bill of sale,"™ and just
as we are ready to get into the truck he comes. out
with a check and gives her the check, but the check

was not that much I will tell you, but it was the
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‘great sport that charlotte had with the landlord.

JUDGE HENRY: In what hospitél were your
children born? ‘

JUDGE JAFFE: Well, my two older children were
born in the same hospital that I was born in, but
my .father’s ¢Ou§in delivered both qf them bedauée
at that time you didn’t have a specialist like you
haYe todaf..: B

Most everybody was, you know, a general
practitfggér and he was an excellent doc;gf. He
really was. ,

‘JUDGE FLANNERQ: And then what about your
children and their early days and what were they
involved with? What were- some of their
achievements?

JUDGE JAFFE: Ookay, well, I guess I want to
tell you thét from, well, we moved to Greenieaf and
when we moved out we went to the place in Skokie
which was at 4441 Wilson Terrace in Skokie and, you
know, 1f you are in my family you have to learn how
to talk very early and usually talk a lot you see.

And my kid, my oldest son is Alan, who
when he was going to school was the president of

the student senate, and I remember his first
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campaign slogan.

It was him holding a taffy apple and he

said, "In candy it’s taffy.

In the senate it’s

Jaffe," and he won that election.

He had a band that he played with, you

see, and you know he was very, very, very social,

really very social.

JUDGE HENRY: Was that hiéh school or college?

JUDGE JAFFE: No, that was high school. -

And ny daughtér of course is sort of the

nature child.

At the time she_lives in California

in a place called Piltdown: which of coursé nobody

knows where it is.

It’s a deserted mining town- and they

bought a pilece of property up there and it and if,

you know, it’s a fun town and of course my youngest

is Lowell and Lowell was always the neighborhood

character because Lowell is funny and he tells a

lot of stories and I was always afraid that when

Lowell would go out he would be one of these kids

that would be sort of obnoxious because they would

still be telling the same stories they told when

they were five years old or something.

Well,

he is wvery shy.
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child number two has two children, child number

three has three Children,rand

-

MR. ROTH: The youngest has three children?

JUDGE JAFFE: Yes, and he has three children

‘VTM§t, he is going to be nine. | Drew was
just seven and then there is Max who is going t
.' ’ T ’ © be

fourrthis week.

se and they go to school in public school
o N S

in gpvanston, you know.

MR. ROTH: They are all very proud of their

grandfather?

JUPGE JAFFE: Well, see, when you séy'gfoud of

their grandfather, I have, I sort of have a

relationship with them where they don’t think th
' -hat

1 am really their grandfather.

They think that I an about 12 years old

and I do a 1ot of stuff with them and that reall
y

_is the greatest thing of all, grandchildren
’

nothing like it.
JUDGE HENRY: What is your oldest grandchild
studying in school?

JUDGE JAFFE: He is now taking business

No, I am sorry my oldest grandchild, my
!

oldest grandchild is Rachel and Rachel was in
music
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What were some of the jobsryou had as an
attorney and when did you start getfing more
seriously involved in politics?

JUDGE JAFFE: Well, my first legal job I worked
for aisingle prfctitioner by the name‘of Harry -
Greenstein.

Does that name mean anything?

Mg. ROTH; &es;

JUDGE JAFFE: He was a single practitioner and

I worked fof.ﬂim for one year.
JUDGE FLANNERY: Ehat year?
-JUDGE JAFFE: eMuét have been ’53, ’54.
JUDGE FLANNERY: Right when you got out of law
school and passed the bar?:-
JUDGE JAFFE: Yes, yes, contrary to what ny

advisor said in college you see, I did pass the bar

‘the first time.

I did get into law scheool and I have
taught in school. I have taught school. I taught
at Oakton Community College. I taught a sociology
course.

I used to do that part-time when I was in
the legislature for the fun of it, that embodies,

you know, history and some other things and I
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taught over at Loyola and I have taught there on
occasion and I have done my teaching and I haver
succeeded in every field thaﬁ she told me 1T
couldn’t succeed in with the exception of writing,
but I am working 5n that,IYOﬁ-seg, but that was my
first. |

MR. ROTH: Was he a graduate of DePaul?

JUDGE JAFFE: ;Who? f o

MR. ROTH: "Your first, Harry:Greenstein,

JUDGE JAFFE: No, Iﬁgﬂst, I ddn't know how I
even got to be with him.
( MR. ROTH: Okay.

JUDGE JAFFE: He was a single practitioner,
very serious guy.

JUDGE HENRY: What type of practice did hé have
and what did you do for him? -

JUDGE JAFFE: Well, I wés_his law clerk and as
I say in those days we, you -- most of our class
was getting $25 a week for when they got out,
because if you got out in those days they said if
you had a job, we are doing you a favor by letting
you work for us because big firms were just not
accessible to me, at least I didn’t know about.

I don’t think they would have been
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accessible for me anyway, but I worked for Harry
and I did some writing and ﬁade some court
appearaﬁces and stuff like that and I remember he
had a deprivation of civil liberties case where a
policémén"beat up a dentist if I am ndtjmistaken
and thereswere not, there were not veryLmény cases
like that at the time and he had to write a brief
for fhé fede}al court and I wrote théf Lriéf:and

that brief was upheld and he then went on to settle

thehéése for SOmething like $20,006¥;£ something
like that. _

JUDGE HﬁﬁRY: So you sank four teeth int; that
case?

JUDGE JAFFE: Yes, and which was a big verdict —-
in those days.

“moday I think it would have been in the
hundreds_of thousands and having done that, Harry
bought me a tie and give me a week’s vacation, you
see, and that was my reward and then very shortly
thereafter I went into partnership with Marty
Ashman.

JUDGE FLANNERY: Do you remember when you
decided you wanted to become an attorney or why you

wanted to become an attorney?
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Was there any one thing or -~
JUDGE JAFFE: Was there any one thing?
Not really; '
JUDGE FLANNERY: ckay.
JUDGE JAFFE: Not .really, I, you know I do love: .
the law. .
You know I was instilled with this feeling
of justice and sb Qn aﬁdiso forth throughﬁmy a

parents.

My paréﬁfs were you know, very, very mﬁéﬁ,
you know, came from the q}d—country. They came
here for they had 1ivedk£hrough pogrons,in-the cld
country.

They talked about it-and they saw freedom
in tHis country and they saw religious freedom and
they believed that, §ou know, that everybody should
be squal and everybo@y should do what they wanted
to do to the best of their ability and that’s what
we were taught, you know, and be respectful of
everyone, that I must say I was never hit as a
child.

Never hit as a child, but my mother was a
great psychologist.

I remember once going to the Illinois
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Psychological Association_and I said to them, "You

and Sigmund Freud, you XkXnow, you think you know all

" about psychology. You don’t know a thing about

psychology," and they all looked at me and started
making notes. ; o

They thought. they were going to lock me up
or something. "Let me tell you who knows something
aﬁoﬁt psychology." Iﬂsaid, ﬁlg}szﬁf mother.®

K I said my mother has never raised her

voicé in her entire life, gig she cﬁuld sit in
front of a boulder that’s the size of the Sears
Tow;r. :

She could sit on a chair next to this
bouider and look at it for a minute and a-half and

the boulder would have a nervous breakdown and tHat

_ﬁas my mother.

My mother was -- she éogld inflict guilt
on anything, on everything you know, but my father
would kid her about that and she was, you know,
even though she came from the old country, my
mother would occasionally play baseball, you know,
and do stuff like that, so it was, it was fun.

JUDGE FLANNERY: I don’t remember did you tell

us your mother and father’s name?
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JUDGE JAFFE: Well, my father’s name was Carl,
and everybody called him Kivie, K-i-v-i-e, which is
I

. I
from his Hebrew name.

His Hebrew name was Akeba and they called

him Kivie and my mother’s name was Dora and -~

MR. ROTH: Where did Jaffe come from?
JUDGE JAFFE: Pardon?
MR. ROTH: Where did Jaffe come from?

JUDGE JAFFE: Well, Jaffe is a very, very old

Hebrew;ﬁéme and I think that’s the ori§i£a1 name.

MR. ROTH: That’s the original?

JUDGE JAFFE: Oh, yes, that’s the original
name. It means beautiful.

MR. ROTH{ You think in Hebrew?

JUDGE JAFFE: Yes.

MR. ROTH: I see.

JUDGE‘JAFFE: So if you look at me yoﬁ can
understand my genes why I was named that.

JUDGE FLANNERY: How about back with Marty
Ashman then.

You went into practice with hin. When was

that and what did you do?

JUDGE JAFFE: I met Marty in high school. We

were on the school pdper together and I had known
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Marty fdrla long,. a long time.

I think he did the news page. I.did the
sports page and we studied together in law school
actually we studied, Nick Bua studied with us. We
had a reall? rather iliustrious class.

I am thinking;about how many of that class
wound up in jail. There were a few.

MR. ROTH: Theséraﬁe-éli Marshall boys?

JUDGE" JAFFE: No, no,'ﬂot the Marshall beys.
The boys were oka;fn?

MR. ROTH: Harshman was Marshall.

JUDGE JAFFE: Sure, :in ;ur class they either
went to jail or became judges.

e It was just that type of:a class and sone
did a combination of the both.

MR. ROTH: I wouldn’t spread that.

JUDGE JAFFE: But‘I_can tell you how many of
our classmates were judges. Ashman became a judge.
I became a judge. Bua became a judge.

Bob McCauley became a judge. Richardsan
in the south suburbs became a judge. Wayne Olson
was from my class, see.

MR. ROTH: Are you saying all these people you'

just mentioned came from DePaul?
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JUDGE JAFFE: Came from my'dlass and ours was a
small class. We only had a class of about 35 that
gr%duated or 40, something like thét.

At that time they would let you into law

-SGhoolhrather easily, but they would brief you

beforehand and they would say look to your left and

look to your right.

Only one of you will be here,-you know,

three years from now “and .I looked to my right and I

saw a bfi}liant guy from the Uﬁfversity'of Chicago
and I qgt scared to death.

O0f course he flunked out, butJI, yvou know,
I managed to survive because I developed a way of
learning. e ' e

It was called the Jaffe Method of Learning”
and?the Jaffe Method of Learning jugt enough, so I
5eqame very test prone. |

I never was afraid of a ﬁest, but if you
tell me tomorrow you are going to give me a test, I
don’t know if I could do it today.

You tell me you are going to give me a
test on brain surgery which I know nothing about, I
would say of course give me a day or twoe. Let me

read the book and what do you need to pass,
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MR. ROTH: What was special apout De Paul, your
class that made them such a great number of them
became judges, made it possible? ¢

JUDGE JAFFE: I don’t know. We-had a -- well,
the% all took ﬁiffgrent routes. Thére’s Nick Eua,“
at that time Wés:in Cicero.

He started off being =-- and Marty, Nick

and I would study fogether-all the time and Nick-

started off, he Waé older than we were and he was

an adjustdf;for one‘of the insurance compaﬂies for
a while and he ran for the judge of I think it was
Cicero. J

At that time each town had judges. It

wasn’t a unified system and when they made the

‘unified system, he got absorbed “into the systemn.

I thini the same thing was true of Wayge
Olson. He cahe_from Riverside and he was eleéted a
judge in Riverside.

When I became a judge, I became a judge
much later than they did and of course I ran
countywide and Marty became a judge even later. I
forgot --

MR. ROTH: Was he also county?

JUDGE JAFFE: Yes, and Bob McCauley.
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I forget how he became a judge, but
Richardson also came from one of the outlying
courts, so we had, vyou knoh, guite a few and those
were not the only judges that we had and it was a
small class. ’ SR

JUDGE FLANNERY: How about getting back with
Marty Ashman practicing law?
What did you do énd héw long were you

together?

JUDGE JAFFE: Well, we got together in 19, it

_was either ’54 or ‘55. We had no clients and we

figured, well, what the heck. (You know, I an
making $30 a week and he is making $25 a week, how
much*worse could we be off? o

So"we opened up an office at 10 North
Clark Street. I loved thaﬁibuilding.

If you remember,.;o North Clark Street, 10
North Clark Street, you know every shopping center
has sort of its main tenants like a Walgreens or a
Marshall Field or something like that.

Well, the main tenant was actually the
landlord who operated a pawnshop on a couple of the
floors at 10 North Clark Street and the renting

agent who worked for the pawnshop was a guy who
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would walk around the building collecting rent.

It was just an amazing thing and he would
always smoke a cigar in his pipe. ’

Did you ever see a guy with a cigar in his
pipe 5nd he would comne, he‘would alﬁafsucqme a few
days early to collect rent like he was geing to get
brownie points or something for collecting rent
ea£l§ andithey -= the build%ngs doﬁ'g ha&e!that
charactéfTanymore. K
o fhere was a barber in tﬁZEEbuildiﬁg that
everybody went to. He was == his name was Itchski
and he:wa; completely bald headed and Marﬁ& was
losing his hair and he came to him and said to hinm,
"Do you have something that would, you Know, herﬁ
us, help me grow hair,™ and he looked at him and he
said, "Why do you ask me a gquestion like that? If I
could @o it, wouldn’t I do it myself?"_

And he was very particular, Itchski. You
had to make an appointment with him so if you got
off the elevator and saw he wasn’t busy, you would
walk in to his place and say, "Give me a haircut
now."

He would say, "You don‘t have an

appointment. Go make an appointment with me."
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You go up to your office and you call him

and say, "Itchski, can I have an appointment?"®
"Yes, yol can have an appointment. Cone'
down I will give you a haircut," but that’s the way

he was and but anyway we went to 10 North Clark .
Streetp |

We rented this office. It was a rather
small qffice dna?we:tﬁouqht we would sit around.énd 
we would, you know, play cards or do- something like
that, but it didn’t work out that way.

We got a few qlients here and there and we
worked feally very, véry hard for our clients.

We did and it isn’t like today with
billable hours. What did we-know from billable
hotirs and we started doing the stuff that other
lawyers didn’t want to do.

We handled everything. We handled
everything from collections to criminal law and
Marty also said, you know what an expert is?

An expert is a guy who handles a case just
like this once before and I think that that’s
probably probably true.

He was an excellent lawyer and he would

call me old Commen-law and the reason that he would
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call me old Comnmon=-law is because I never took a

pleading out of a law book.

I thought if you are doing a pleading you

ought to know what the elements are that you have

... to plead and then.you will”piead\them.

So what d}d I need ﬁ_iaw book for? So I
would always do my own pleading and I never liked
1Ega1ese. | 7 o

I would plead them in the English and -
sbmeﬁimes the judges und:;étood them and SO we
s?arﬁed off in that fashion and the éractice grew
é;mewhat, you kpow.‘ |

We never became millionaires or anything
else te-~that effect and we stayed together and we
had a lot of, 'you know, if you know and for
instance I became a semipro in doing workman’s conp
cases.

I didn’t even know workman’s comp existed
when I was in law school, you see, and just by
virtue of the fact that we have got this
application that we did it.

So we did a little criminal. We did a
little.

JUDGE FLANNERY: So how long did ydu stay
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together?

JUDGE JAFFE: We stayed)together until the time
when I was élected to the legislature which was in
1300 ~- and I think it was in the 1970 and I went
to theVlégis;ature. ’ R

'fMé and Marty and I had been friénds for
for so many years. I said to him, "I am going into
the lééislafdre. I am not goigg to bé:é}ouﬁd‘so
everything is going to fall-on you and the time
wilfﬁéome wheh'yéu will resent me f;?Lihat." |

I_sa?d énd we were good friends and %7
don’t want tﬁét to be the case énd I think tﬁ;t we
should dissolve and if the time comes we will get
back together. e : e

We will get back together and that’s
basically what we did and so --

MR.‘ROTH: Where did you run fron, ﬁhat
district?

JUDGE JAFFE: I ran from a district which was

-= well, it was Skokie, main township and parts of
really township.

JUDGE FLANNERY: At this point it would be a
good point since it’s 4:00 o’clock and then we will

pick up next time with your political years and
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whatever, however long the statute has run,
whatevef you can still talk about from £hose days.

JUDGE JAFFE: Okéy.:

JUDGE FLANNERY: And we will go from there
outside of that. = '

JUDGE HENRY: I,think this has been great and
from —-—- off the record.
AEDisbﬂssion off the record.).
(WHICH WERE ALL THE PROCEEDINGS
1 HAD Iﬁ'Tﬂﬁ ABOVE-ENTITLED CAGEE

ON THIS DATE.)}
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )

) 88:

'COUNTY OF € O O K ) ‘

. IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS

COUNTY DEPARTMENT - LAW DiVISION

I, JOYCE LEDGER, Official court Reporter
of the Circuit Court of Cook County;'County
Depéftmeht - Chancery Divis?gﬁ, do hereb? certify
that I feported in stenotype the procgedings on
thisﬁdate; that T thereéfter caused £he foregoing
to be transcribed into typewriting, which I certify

to be a true and accurate transcript.

Ve _ B
OE£}Ci%} Court Reporter

084~001292
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'IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS

COUNTY DE?ARTMENT - LAW DIVISION.

A CONTINUATION OF -THE HISTORY OF THE EARLY
VEARS OF the Honorable AARON JAFFE on Thursday, the

17th day of June 2004.

ALSO PRESENT:

HON. JAMES F. HENRY,

HON. JAMES FLANNERY,
HON. FRANCIS BARTH,

MS. DANA BOWERS.

Joyce Ledger, 084-001292
Official Court Reporter

circuit Court of Cook County

County Department - Chancery Division.
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JUDGE FLANNERY: Where were we?
Let the record reflect or the transcript
reflect that we are going to continue the biography

of Judge Jaffe and T am going to be asking some

_gquestions and we are joined today by Judge Frank

¢

AR
Barti™
S

Francis or Frank?

JUDGE BART: I am Francis Baré: re?iredljudge.

iJUDGE FLANNERY: Who was originally involved
with taking some of7£he'oralqgi§tory of some of the
judges back several years ago.

'JUﬁGEVBART: That’s correct.

JUDGE FLANNERY: And also by?

MS. BOWERS: And Dana Bowers.

JUDGE FLANNERY: TIs it Bowers with a B?

MS. BOWERS: Yeé.

JUDGE FLANNERY: And you are a law student at
Kent and you are Qery interested in ancient histofy

rather, I am sorry, history, history.

So I am going to ask some guestions and,

¥

Judge Bart, if you want to jump in at any time or,

Dana, if you think there is anything you would like

to ask, we have a sitting target.

Aaron, when we left off last time, we
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several books that were very popular about the
Chicago politics and ébout the first Richard. Daley
and so I called him. | |

I had to track him down and he was in Léé
Vegas or someplace like that and I said, "Miltie,
do you want to run for Conéieés?"

And hé saiaq, "I“ﬁiil run for anything;‘ I
don’t really care. I don’t know if it’s a winner
or a loser because I have wrltten books on this
subject and I would dike to see what it is fo run
for office and to do that."

So I called the othef“coﬁmitteemen and .

they said, "Fine," so Miltie is our candidate and

in the meantime we are pa551ng out these things for

-
PEEES

Eddie and a meeting is called by Mayor Daley at the
Cook County Central Comnittee.

I forget which hotel it was at, at that
time. I£ was either the Bismark, the Laéalle, one
of themn.

JUDGE BART: Might have been the Morrison.

JUDGE JAFFE: Might have been tﬁe Morrison and
we -- and the way the room is situated is there was
this meeting room, but there were two entrances

into the meeting room.
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Well, one was sort of like,through a hall
and the other one was thfbugh Mayor Daley’s office.
'So 1 expected him to be in thpre; but he
was in. We ;ad to walk through the Mayor's office
andlthewmgeting room and we had go through the

meetihg:room and as I walked through, the Mayor

gave me the finger.

ncome here." So I came there. - He said,
"Moreman “called ti right.!' ' T said, "Yes, he is.
Herls g01ng to he a candldate for~Congress," and I

said, "Wel}, Mr. Mayor, I have to tell you number
one, he dgésn't want to run'for Conqressman. He
did that one time and i£ was a losing ﬁroposition
for him. He wants to go back to the legislature, I
would like for him to go back to the législatugg,
and I think that’s what ought to Dbe done," and he
said to me, "Well, do you know where ﬁe is?" And I
said, "Yes, I know where he is. He is in his law
office. I could call him probably if you wish,
and the mayor said, “ies, please give him a call
and tell him I want to see him."

gso I called Eddie and I said to hinm,
"pddie, the Mayor wants you to run for congress.

I don’t think you should run. I don’t think you
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want to."
He.said, "Well, I don’t want- to.” t-said,

"§o either, you know, you can do one of several
things. Either I:will get the mayor on the
telephone with you and you can talk to him or I can
+ell him that you.dqn’t want to run or maybe run £of
hide uﬁder the désk. You can hide undér the desk
for a few hours'and'by that time we will have
nomlnated Miltie Rayko,' because he knewrwhat was
going on, put  the mystique of Mayor Daley Wwas. 50
strong that Eddie wanted to come down and see the
mayor.

| And he caﬁe down and we all sat around tﬁe
room. The mayor, he came in and he went into the
an office with the mayor aﬁaithe mayor talked to
him for about ten.minutes and he céme out and he
said, "I am running for Congress," aﬁd, you know, I
was Jjust dumbfounded, but the mafor was very
persuasive as you can see.

And so I then walked up to the mayor. I

said, "Well, now, I have got a probklem because I
have been circulating petitions for Moreman and wve

don’t have a candidate," and the Mayor said, YWe

will have a meeting on who," you kneow, on the
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for two offices at the same time and I would be

running for conmitteeman and state rep at the same

"time," and Touhy said, "Oh, come on. My father

once ran for three or four offices at the same
time," and suffice it to say . that they did to me
@hat Daley did to Moreman and.f became the
candidate for staﬁé rep, okay.:

Now, it was sort of a funny candidacy

-pecause it was a multi-member district as you

recall. - e s

I was the bowling ball and there I was
Egming out of left field runningdfor-state rep.

My -- it was a minority district. In
other/yprds, you know, you had an election, one
democfat and Pwo republicans énd s0 yéﬁurun with
your opponent and you have tqﬂbeat your oppon;nt
and and I, you know, I ran with this opponent.

JUDGE BAR;i Actually, it’s not your opﬁonent.
It’s your teammate.

JUDGE JAFFE: He is my teammate. That’s
exactly right. You run, as Tony Scariano would say
you always say, running the other guy around so he

can’t take a punch at you, you see, and so I ran

for the office and because I was just a
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committeeman and because I had not run for sta£e
reé and the other guy had, I got vér? few
endorsemgnts. |

;As a matter of fact I didn‘t get, I didn’t
get the endorsements for the then popular IVI.

-.It was -- they didn’t even 1nterv1ew me,
but I won the election and just as an a51de with
the IVI, I remember Shelly Gardner was then one of
the ladieé.of the IVI. _

R Shelly is a judge now. At..the end of
session they tobk a look at the records of the
1nd1v1duals who ran and they had to give me an
award because mine was the, you know, the most
lndependent record down in the leglslature,

It was 1ndependent and it was llberal yoa%
see, and.so here it was they had to glveja guy who
had not been, not been screened by them, who had
not beeﬁ, you know, not‘been endorsed by them, they
had to give him this award.

So I went there and instead of being
gracious as I should have been, I took the award
and I lectured these independents, yéu know, about

the fact that in order to be independent, sometines

it’s tough to be independent of independence, you

11
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know,'and I gave them a little speech and as I was

walking off the podium, Shelly Gardner got all

upset and he said as T was
said, "We don’t believe in

saida."

4

So I got back up on the podium and I said,

leaving, you know, he

80 percent of what you

"Mr. Chairman, I jﬁét wanted you to know that

neither does Mayor ‘Daley, so that makes 160

percent," and that’s how I

JUDGE FLANNERY: Very good.

first ran.

Now how about some of the early years when

you were down there, any of the interesting people

down there or friends that you made or lifetinme

friends in the legislature you were involved with

the first couple years.

JUDGE JAFFE: Well, the first couple years, let

me tell ybu this.

PR

Sam Rayburn of Texas used to say whenever

you go into the legislature you go down and you

keep your mouth shut and you watched everything and

everybody and I didn’t do that.

I pushed a lot of
-- we were in the minority.

the speaker of the house.

12

stuff, and I always held
Billy Bomclear was

It was a very, very
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. and forget your programs.

conservative House.
: & _ o
JUDGE BART: What year was that specifically?

JUDGE JAFFE: 1971, and so I, I took the

'position that, you know, you just can’t sit back

4

You have to come forwa;dfwith aggressive
perhaps and not just"be defensi&e:about them.

So I filed a lot of legislation and I made
ailpt of friends in the legislatufe; I really did.

I came downlét the-same timg with Mike ”
Madigan. He was in my class. It was ~- it was a
fantastically interesting House because we had such
%eople as Henry HYde, you know. |

Harold Washington was a good friend of
mine, youlknow.

Harold Xatz, Bob Mann qu it was a
different place than it is now.

JUDGE BART; Abner Mikva was still there?
JUDGE JAFFE: No, he had left.

Scariano was there, but you could hear a
debate between Hyde and Washington and Scariano and
those were wonderful debates.

¢. L. McCormick who no one ever heard

heard. He came from the southernmost part of

13
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Il1linois. €. L. owned a store. It was called thé
,ittle Big Dollar Store or something. |

It was a general store and you wou;d go
into C. L.’é store and come out barefoot and you
would tﬁink;you had a pair of shoes on. Hg would
give one s?ge@hva year. |
| JUDGE éART: clyde Shew was down there.

JUDGEfjAFEEf I became guite close to Clyde.

Actually McCormick was from the same:‘_
distrift as clyde. He would give.this@qpeat speech:
at the end of the éession.
| He wbui& say, "The people in my district
are so poor and the mosquitoesrare so big," he
said, "We are workinqg?n the field and the
mosguitoces are s©O bié-they come in and they furn
over our tractors."

So that was him, but we had a lot of great
characters,;you know, who Qere in, were in the
legislature.

JUDGE FLANNERY: And then what about some of
the legislation that you either sponsored, had
passed or some of the interesting legislation down

there when you were there?

JUDGE JAFFE: Well, well, I, well, I passed a

14
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lot of - you are talklnq about the whole -

JUDGE BART What were the big issues let’s say
in those days?

JUDGE JAFFE: Well, the big issues, well, you
know a lot, you know{ there was, there were a lot
of things that were goiﬁgfoh.

Forﬁinstance,Jene of the things I am. best
known for is the complete revision of the criminal
statute with"regard to sexgal crimes and we had the
Rape Study cemmitteeﬁand I chaired that fer a -
number of years and we came out with proposals
that, that we were the firsf“oﬁes that came out
with these-proposals.

Other states passed them before we passed
éhem. They had picked up our thleg and passed thenm
and the stuff that we actually passed became really
good 1aw in that.

I think the University of IllanlS did a
survey of criminal statutes that had been passed in
the last 20 years or whatever, you know, a lot of
criminal statutes are somewhat silly because why

are they passed, they are passed because the

individual who filed it is an individual who is a

nice person.

15
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You want to give him a bill to teke home
se he could brag to his constitﬁents that he passed
that pill and as a matter of fact I remember Judy
Toﬁinka who is, you know, now a staﬁe officer and a
very dellghtful person.

She had a bill called, Aggregate

Aggravated Fleeing which I don’t know if that'’s

“a¥ill on the books or not, but I thought that was,

you know, a funny statute, but they passed it for

= “her. L ‘ 7 ‘{.’-:—:'-_"- -

ée I passed that. I passed the, well, I
was, 1 “was involved in legislation with-the =-- in
probate with the 1ndependent admlnlstrator

I dld divorce stuff. 1 was, you know, at
that time you also Qad the, had the change where
people went from 21 to 18.

T did a lot of things for the rights of 18
yeer olds including, you know, the drinking of wine
and liquor, a bill that I got passed for 19 year
olds and it passed the legislation.

That itself would take about four hours to
explain.

JUDGE FLANNERY: What about House Bill 1237

JUDGE JAFFE: ©Oh, House bill 123 was =~- the

16
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long~term contracts.

They would tell them that they would

becomne popular,and“you had some, you know, peopié

i

whonare just taken advantage of.

One woman :had lost fortunes. I remenmber

one woman we had, -it was just a disgrace and so I

had the b¥il to clean up the --

JUDGE FLANNERY: Dance studio industry?

JUDGE JAFFE: Dance studios and you can get,

you can sort of will =-- you get a bill number in

the order which it’s filed, but sometimes you say

, to the clerk when you get to this number, I wanﬁ

you to give it,. hold my bill until that time and so

the clerk said, "What number do you want?"

I said, "I want House Bill 123," and he

said, "okay," and the reason that I did that is

pecause every time I spoke about that bill I spoke

about it in the following manner.

I would call it House Bill one, two,

three. So it just, just as a dance step and pretty

soon everybody loved it,

A7

to say House Bill 123,
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123, and it passed, unanimously.' I had a.lot of
fun with bills like that.
JUDGE FLANNERY: You get the penalty bill.
JUDGE JAFFE: Well, of:course the death
penalty. J
T introduced some_hilis which I would
consider probabiy a little)bit off the page, but T

often did that just to -illustrate we in the

legislature sometimes were preoccupied with somne

'.very silly thlngs. L

The death penalty bill that I had and I am

“raqalnst the death penalty. I dbn't know who here

isn’t, but I am against the death penalty bill, but
I had this bill drafted that said that executions
should be publlc, held in stadiums, that we should
charge admission charge and I allocated where the
money should go to, to the fish fund or something
1ike that, and I had a lot of fun with 1t.

I d4id, you know. I d4id something =--
education, I came from the suburbs.

Traditionally suburban areas are thought
of as being very rich, but suburban areas don’t get
much money from the school aid normally.

I think the school aid formula is so

18
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complex only three people in the world underétand
it and that I was not one-of them ﬁnd I think two
of fhe@ were in the mental institution it was so
crazy,;but I did change it to get a beﬁter break
fdrtth schools and whatnot.
JUD@EEFLANNERY: You know we shoﬁlduéet into
your ;areer as a Judge, butJbefore we“do; how about
some ©of the other people down in Springfield,
anybody:you can think ofrwhd was particuiq:ly
gffective; somebody who had the nost integrity,
some of the best friends you made down there just
to touqh on that. = B
JUﬁGE JAFFE: My seat mate was Gleﬂ Schneider
from Naperville.
He was“%ilder‘than I was. Gle£ Schnei&gr,
Zeke Gada from Rockford.
Gene Barnes who was my office mate, who
then became head of the CTA.
Harold Washington and and I became very,
very close.
JUDGE FLANNERY: Who were the two republicans
from your distriect?

JUDGE JAFFE: Well, if you recall, I am going

to tell you two républicans and you will see one of
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them was Bob Jaquette
Do you remember him?

JUDGE BART: Yes,'l know the name.

JUDGE JATFFE! jaquette was probably the most
conservétive menbeys of the legislature. I think I
was thejconsidered;the"most liberal and Gene .
slickman.

: 3

JUDGE BAR%Q-AThat -

JUDGE JAFFE: Gene Slickman was 1n the middle
and no oﬁe céﬁia underStaﬁd how Jaquette'andeéeyere

lected from- the same dlstrlct and I was
malntalnlnq that 1 represented the lunatic fringe
and that resulted from my =~ my going to a meetinq;
at Park Ridge which. was a very conservative area
and we used to have these tewn meegings and peoplerl
would come in there and and Mikva was running and
Michael Fulmore would be there pecause I would |
refer to them as ﬁy conservativelfriend, Abner

Mikva, you see, put one guy was Vvery upset with me

one day and he got up and he went into a tirade and

said, you know, wyou don’t represent this
district. You don’t represent me," and I said to
him, "You are right. I really don't represent you,

and guite truthfully I don’t want to represent

20
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you."

You are -not =-- Irsaid, "1 represent the-
iunatic fringe and as long as the lunatic fringe is
happy I am going to get reelected," and after the

meeting, a lot of the people came up to me and

4

- said, "How do we join the lunatic“fringe?" Which I

felt good about, but you want to talk about Sloat.

I really liked Sloat and Sloat was not

‘liked by the independents, you knpw, and Clyde was

an amazing guy.

He had won the congressional Medal of

" Honor in World War II. He was supposéd to be a

protege of Walt Powell.

Powell, he was thought of as the great
wheeleéﬁaealer and I think thatva lot oghthat was
just a mystiqué that he brought about himself |
because he was -- my wife always thought he was the
sexiest man in the world, you -see, because he was
this rough and tumble guy from southern Illinois
and he was absolutely charminq_and very, very
tough.

I, I remember once when we were talking he

said, you know, he said I was born, there were a

number of kids in the family, nine, ten, eleven,

21
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twelve, I don’t know how many there were, and I
gueés his father was had paséed away or something,
and he saild to me, you know, he said and,i"Mama
needead mohey,“ and he would say and they ﬁould have
these Frlday fights that would. roam around southern

Illln01srand he would, people would pay to see the

fights and they would have someone who is a

_profe551onal get in the ring and then you would

challenge that person, he said, and they would have

'thoéﬁifightS'andiyou get in the'ringgand you get --

you had to stay hith them for three rounds I think

or somethlng 1ike that, say and if you could do

that you get $10. 1If you couldn't you only get
five. B

He said, l'JAnd mama needed the monéy, so I
would get-in the ring. Usually I would bring home
ten, he said but sometimes I brought home five, "
and he was was just hystérical.

He was one of the funniest guys and really

knew human nature. Now this next story I probably

- shouldn’t tell, but, but you know he was the

minority leader.
He was the leader of the democrats then

and Jerry Shay who you know was the assistant

22
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minority leader.and Billy Bobmyer was the speaker
of the Hﬁuse and I loved to talk to Clydé, and |
clyde knew that Shay was there to watch him for
Daley, you see. |
And one day he says walks over to-me and

he says, "I am going'to:t;ke a little walk with the
speaker ana I want you to watch Shay whileJI do
it," and he walks'up*to the Speaker in the middle - ~°
of the.hou;e, you know, and he has got pimﬂaround
the ~- put his afti around him and is whispefing-&n:
his ear.

,I-tell you whgh é&yde whispers in your ear

only his face shows and the rest is in your head.

.He is taking to the speaker and he is walking up

and back, whispering in the ears of one another,
talking very, being very animated and I am watching
Shay. and Shay is watching them and he looks very,
very concerned, and Ciyde comes back to me and
said, "Well, did you watch Shay?" And I say, "Yes,
I did."

I said, "What was that all about?" He
said, "Nothing," he said, "I just like to keep Shay
on his toes," but that was Clyde, you know.

After Clyde left the legislature, he
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pecame the dean of external affairs for Southern
T1linois University which meant that he was their
robbylst and one night I had dlnner with him and he

picked up the check and Clyde who was always

" putting people on, he pulled out a credit card and

he sald, he said, "You know what? They gave me this

card here and it’s madé out of piastic. I don’t

_knqw what to do with it. They told me I could pay

for dinner with it."

'He said, "I déh’t krow anythipg'about
thls }He said, "I only use cash, never used,
anythlnq like checks or little thihqs“like this,"
and of course he was, you know, hé was Jjust putting 
on a show,aﬁnd was very, very funny.

JUDGE FLANNERY: All right, how about é} we
start talking about your career as a judge, when
you became a judge, what your assignments have
peen, some of the interesting cases you have had
some of the good attorneys that have appeared in
front of you, things like that.

JUDGE BART: Was there another political story
to get out of the legislature and into the
judiciary?

JUDGE JAFFE: Well, there are a million
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“political stories, you know, but I don’t think

that’s what you want.

JUDGE BAR?E' Well, I mean there came a time
when you got slated, just as you were slated for
the General Assembly, how did that happen?-

JUDGE JAFFE: Wwell, how I got slated was;tﬁaé

Seymour Simon was in the -~ was on the Suprenmne

court and if you recall in that election, in the '

- election Seymour Simon ran for -- to go on the . -

Supreme‘éburt.

The parties. had slated Francis Lorenz who

_was really a great guy, you know, but wasn’t as

good a judge as Seymour and very personable and the
democrats slated Eddie.Burke for state’s attorney
and Richard M. Daley ran against Eddie Burke as a
independent and the political organizations In my
area were éupporting -- I was no longer a
committeeman.

I had given that up a long time ago, but I
found it just an impossible task to do but, so, all
the political organizations were endorsing Lorenz
and Burke and I endorsed Seymour Simon and Daley
and they got between 56 and 70 percent of vote in

my area, had nothing to do with me in any area I
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guarantee you, had nothing to do with then.

They did it on their own because they were

popular and they won and when I was with Seymour,

he said, "Would you like to go on the bench?" And

all my friends were leaviing the legislature and I

said, "Yes, I think it’s;about time that I do leave

because it was great fun," but you Kknow, you have

got to know when to hold them and you have got to

would," and he appd?}%ed me to the bench.

know when to fold them, and so I said, "Yes, I

Now the next election of course I had to

—an

run for and that was the peginninq of everybody

running for office,

e And I had 12 opponents.

JUDGE BARTH:

you know.

o

What year are we talking about?

JUDGE FLANNERY: 867

JUDGE JAFFE:

’86,‘yes, because 1 was let’s

see, I went onto the bench in 785, yes, and that

was, 1t was

rae,

so what,

you know,

run and I had twelve opponents.

I was slated to

That was the first time everybody ijumped

on. They are starting to understand that you

didn’t need organization to win and I have a very

short name.
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I don’t have a middle name. We were too
ppér to get middle namés in those days.
! | You wouldn’t know about that,.but anyway,
S0 ﬁy whole name 1s only ten lettersllong and I
drew the place on the ballot, Number 8, which was a
tergible place to be on the ballot. “
Fortunately, I wbn becauserI had a lot of
éﬁﬁpo;t.f Number one, you know, Wéshiqgtbn was then
mayor. ‘He supported me, Q:ydolak and Washington
“Were fightiﬁg and Vrydolak‘I do#i”t think supported
me. ‘. |
Jhe was too busy déing other étdgk to worry
about me and Madigan who was becoming in power at
that time supported me. e
Sog I got support from all three and won
the election. So, I pride myself on—-the fact that
I was able to get all three, you know,
comb&nations,
There’s a funny story about dinner that I
was at with, you know, with Vrydolak. |
He had had an award dinner here downtown
and as you know he was the Chairman of the
Democratic Party and he had thousands of people

there and 1 didn’t know if I could get to the-

27



10
11
12
13
<14
i5
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

dinner, but I did and I came to the desk and I
idéntified myself and I said, "Is if possible for
me to get a ticketé“ ;
And aSVI was waiting, Eddie Vrydolak
passéd by and“the"wqman at the desk grabbed him ,and
said,, you know,;“iudge is here." You know. "Do ﬁe
have a place to sit him at?" |
Andrﬁfydqiak was really all frenzied
because he was running around and_trying to take
care of ev;¥§thing and he went through-andiﬁbt a
whole packs of ticketsnand he gave me a ticket and

said, "Sit at that table. TIt’s a good table for

you," and I sat down. I came to this table.
I didn’t  know anyhody there. There was an
elderly couple, two elderly couples. No, there was

an elderly coupleé, an elderly woman sitting with-a

. person who was obviously her son and it was sort of

a spéce in the middle and I sat down and it turﬁéd
out I was sitting next to Vrydolak’s mother and
next to his in-laws and it was his brother.

Now, I thiﬁk his brother thought because I
was sitting at the table and he had, he had put me
there that I must be very, very important and all

of the members of that political organization came,
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you know, came up to the table to pay their
respects to thé mother and the brother would séy,
"And this is Judge Jaffe, Eddié really wants
him." |

You see, and so I came out of the 10th
Ward with a qreat,majority{; ﬁarold Washington had

sent out a letter for me, you know, and so I, you

‘know, I did all right, bﬁt‘aftéf, I saw Washington

" after the election he said, "You know I was worried

for a while. I didn’t Know if jou would get

elected. It took me a while to find you on the

ballot."
I was Number 8. Everybody had long ﬁames.

JUDGE FLANNERY: So what about as.a judge?
What’s been your experience?

JUDGE JAFFE: Well, my first experience was
that when I became judqe,‘I preceded Egrry=
Comerford who I think it waé a very sweet guy and I
think a very able administrator who really was
never recoghized for as good as he was, you see,
and as you know, Harry would smile, but I very
seldom saw him laugh, you see, and he said," Well,
where do you want to sit?"

And I had, in the legislature I had passed
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the Reform Marriage and Dissolution Of Marriage Act
in 1977 and I do like kids and so I said, "I think
I wouldilike to sit in the Divorce Division and I

think I would like to hear divorce cases," and with

thatt he started laughing so hard I had never seen

: 1

him lauéﬁnthat hard.
i ﬁe almost fell off his seat. He said,
"Why do you,want that?" He said, "Nobody wants
that." f.§aid, "Well, I helpéd pass thati"
legislation and I do likeﬂkids and%ig I can . do
sométhing decent for a child, you know, I think
that that wﬁuld be very, very satisfying for«mé."
{Well, at that time there was a aifferent

structure in the Divorce Division and you had a

-
~

custody ball, soughere hecame two éustodf calls aga
I handled one custody cail until they changed the
structure of the Divorce bivision.
It was, it waé a tough call.

JUDGE FLANNERY: How long was that? How long?
How long were you in that division?

JUDGE JAFFE: Well, I was in the Divorce
Division for six or seven years until I came down
with a bleeding ulcer, but I don’t attribute it to

that, actually to that, but it was very rough when

30



10
11
12

13

1477

15
16
i7
18
i9
20
21
22
23

24

you are dealing w1th kids and as you know, you get
there in the morning and you go on the bench and
you have an emergency with a three year old, a i
non-verbal little girl and the mother is irate
because[the chil&,;thexﬁhave taken the child to the
doctor and they fihdlthat she has been sgxually
abused and she comes in yelling and screamlng and
saying I don’'t want that husband near my child, “and
he comes- ln and he is 1rate because they are
separated, an;?he is saylng, "Well, look, don’ t
look at me. I am more ;ra£e than she is. Take a
look at her new boyfriéﬁd,“ and that's,aii I had
and I have got to make a decision where to put that
child that night. - o

I would go home many, many *nights talking
to myself until I got the hang of what you do, you ~
know, and what yoﬁ_do is you have to terrify
everybody in the proceeding.

You appoint an attorney for the child.
You order psychologicals on everyone and tell the
wife she has to bring her boyfriend in because you
don’t have jurisdiction over him and you order a

home study report and by the time they leave the

courtroom, they are so terrified that everybody is
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Is that true?

going to be looking at them‘and fortunately nothing
ever happened.
So, but I stayed there for, you know, for

about six vears I would say and it was satisfying,

. . but then they changéd the structqre and then we

ﬁere broken down into teams an@ éverybody started
taking custody caseé and I became the, sort of the
head of a team.

We had A, B; c, D, E, F, teams so and each
tean héd about five jﬁdgegﬁgn it, so -

JUDGE FLANNERY: Then when did you go to

. Chancery?

You went to chancery right after divorce?

o F

JUDGE JAFFE: No, no, no, after divorce I

“wanted to, I didn’t want -- I wént to the Law

Division for about three years I think.
JUDGE FLANNERY: You were ih the Law Division?
JUDGE JAFFE: 1 was in the Law Division, yes.
JUDGE FLANNERY: Is that what they refer to as
the Golden Age of the Law Division?
JUDGE JAFFE: Well, I sort of think it was the
Golden Age of Chancery after I got in there, but it

was the Golden Age of the Law Division.
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JUDGE FLANNERY: And when was that? When were
you in law?
JUDGE JAFFE: Oh, I don’t know, you Kknew,

highly subject to being a judge, something like

" that. Lo ' S

JUDGE FLANNERY: And there you handled ‘law
jury?

JUDGE JAFFE: Law, jury, now, you know, I can’t

necessarily say that I really. enjoyed the Law ~

Division and the reason for it is this.

You do gét to rule on law cases, make thé,
iaw of the gaséwand S0 on and.sorforth, butéfoﬂ%
don’t make the final decision, you see, and for me
most of the job initially is putting the jury in
the box and get -- swearing-the Jjurors in and
making sure that vou get a good jury and try to
help the‘lawyers get a good Jjury and then the other
part is reédinq instructions. _

Well, instructions are just the most
terrible thing in the world because you read
instructions and by the time you finished three
instructions at least four of the jurors are
sleeping.

So very often I would make up my owh

33
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instructions and towards the end of my turn in the
Law Divisibn, I always thought it was sort- of silly
to send in one set of ipstructions for the Jjury to
look at.

1 don’t know_%f this has changed so, you
are going to‘have to tellﬁé, but I decided in my
last cases éo get doné; what instructions, t'o have
copies of the instructions for each juror and if
they were;gding to, if wé were going to have"fhem
start delibefatin&fthe next day I would éive them¢ﬁ?
their instructions to take home with them, even
before finai'arguments ybu“gee, before final
argument; |
e JUDGE FLANyERY: Go ahead.

JUDGE BART% Aaron, you wereJup in your seventh
year in jury and this means you would héve had to
have gone through at least one retention and 1 was
wondering if you had ahy thoughts or'feflection on
the evolution of the retention process since you
have been on the bench and since you maybe had some
influence in the election process in the General
Assembly and we are still going through the
judicial retention and do you have any +houghts or

reflections on that aspect of being a judge?
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JUDGE JAFFE: Well, being,now what portion are

. you talklng about?

! I mean the retention prooess itself or?

N
JUDGE BART: I was thinking of the entire

i{thipg! the judges having to get 60 percent.

The question in a normal election as you

well know, that would be a landslide.

_JUDGE JAFFE: Yes.

"JUDGE BART: And-wh;n I said the evolution of
it, i:assﬁmed when you firstdﬁéht on the bench
probably you went on the Chicago Bar ass&ciation
maybe or the ethnic bar and now there’ é a great
many of them.

I would be interested in any of yourx
thoughts with the perspective of years you have had

in the process as to the quality of the process

‘after being an effective tool for the people and

what good if any it does for the q;ality of the
judiciary?
JUDGE JAFFE: I seem to, a number of, really
number of things.
The retention is one thing. The

sub-circuits are another, you know, and the

sub-~circuits are good and bad because it does give
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minority members reﬁresentation people might not
‘necessafiiy'have in them, but by the samé-token
because thé a¥ea'is so small it usually gets |
controlled poiitically, and I don’t think political_
control in and by itself is that terrible.

I feméﬁbér with the Bar association,ffér“

years the Chibaqo Bar has been tryiﬁg to pass: you

know, judiciary forms and they have always. .gone

with the Netsze{,pawn Clark Netsze Bill which tﬁey

havé been-defeated on for at least 30 years that T
know of and they persgist on coming back with the

same bill over and“over and over again and they get

‘defeated and at one time Dan Lynﬁh who is a juége

and, you know, prior to him.

So it-was lobb;lst I think with Tommy-
Hynes, you know.

We were asked to serve on a committee, the
Chicago Bar, to come up with éome concept of
judicial reform and, you know, welworked hard on it
and what we did is we came up with a hybrid because
I don’t like the concept of a governor picking
judges.

That means if you have got a democratic

governor he is picking out the judges or a
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republicanrdoing the same then it becomes more
political than an eiection.

The ideal things,of course would be the
election if the people paid attention to the
judges, but the Congréssmgn said in order for you
to have at least a democrgcY Qou have to have an
enlightened eléction for-ﬁhich they don’t pay
attention. |

They aémplain about the size of the
béllot, but they don™t “try to become acquainted-
with the judges at all, a small portion, but not
everybody. - | A

So Lynch and i proposed what was sort of a

cross between the Netsze bill and a new bill that
would also, incorporate as politicians, as
politicians they are not going to give up their
ability to have an input, but you also spread out
that input and make sure that the bar associations
and the bar associations are more political
sometimes than political parties, but you are
trying to spread it out so you have more people
involved and we came up with the concept and I
don’t even remember what the final product was, but

it -had a lot of people involved and the Bar
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aséociation looked at it and they went with the
Netsze bill again and they havelbeen getting
defeated ever since. |
| I don’t even think they even bring it up
anymore and so you have that, the qpnFept of being
interviéﬁéd by the Bar association. h
~ I found very intefesting beééuée basically

you ‘go before a committee and what amazed,me last
time, i_had already been on the bench fén about 14
“Jears and went before this comnmittee.

I hﬁd sat in law jury. I had sat in the
Divorqé Division. I had sat in Chancery dhdrl went
into é room, I didn’t rééognize one 1a%yer there.

Oof course, basically the committee is made
up of young 1aﬁyers th have time to give to tggf
committee and they don’t have much else to do and
sometimes the questiqns that are asked are
sometimes inane. |

It shows that that person has really not
been in a courtroom and nonetheless they are
passing judgment on you.

Then you get to the concept of with every
different power assocliation and they all have their

own bilases and the biases are legal in nature by
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any stretch of the imagination and so, I think
there is a lot lacking in that sort of process. 1

really do. ;

Before the alliance we had to go to just
about ‘ever bor association in the world.

JUDGE BART | That's what I, I suppose it
betrays an underlylng bias of my own, but I was
concurring with your thought in putting the
questlon, because when you dgo before arn alliance

now each ha& a bias for an agenda of thelr own, and

a judge has to get 60 percent of the vote.

I was wonderlng from the perspectlve of
the years you have as a lawyer and a judge, do you
think ultimately this is an improvement on the

system that you were introduced to lo, these many

years ago or you think there could be trouble down

the road?

JUDGE JAFFE: ©Oh, I think thore will be trouble
down the road. There’s no gquestion that there’s
going to be trouble down the road.

I think things were different and maybe
it’s a sign of age, but it seems even that we are
-- we can go, when we had the politicians picking

out the judges, we had some excellent, excellent
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judges that were coming forth and, you know, 1 can

think of sone of the old ones, I am sure you can.

“that were Jjust marvelous judges -and they came out
f

of the political system and I think the political
system is different than what it is today and I

think the political systen, ittwds politics you

know, and you, and you had everything that you had’

- was not particulars, but you had something in

.addition to it and I think it ﬁag the times.

For instaﬁbe, the. times the=democratiér
parﬁy really believed that you had to serve the
people and I think polltlcally I thlnk we are
further pulled away from that spe01a1 interest
which 1eads me to a thought about the judlclary,
because I thlnk if I look at the polltlcal scene I
think the executive branch really caters to the
special interests.

1 fhink, the judiciary, I mean the
legislative branch actually caters to the special
interests.

The only place I think someone can get a
fair shake is in the courthouse and if the time
comes when people can‘t get a fair shake in the

courthouse has to be a new deal, has to be a level
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playlng field and if our courts do not present'a
level playlng field we are 1in big trouble and we
can kiss, any democracy good-bye. |

'I really feel that way and I think we have
to strlve to make the judges more 1ndependent you

know, unfortunately, in this area, since we had

Greylord, judges are sort of afrald to be judges,

~ you know.

Ybu;kind of sit in your room you hqve got
to tlose the door and you havergot to .hide under
the desk.

I mean that’s silly. I mean if youJare-a
judge you have got to also llve in the real world

and know what’s going on in the real world and --

% ‘:. ",. “Fa

e

JUDGE BART: You feel that we are stiil living
with, how. do I put it, a legacy of Grequyd?

JUDGE JAFFE: I think we live with a legacy of
Greylord to some extent; and I find that  judges are
very intimidated by an awful 1lot of things and they
are, the Canons of Ethics, you know, for judges,
it’s good, but it’s far from perfect.

It really is far from perfect. If you sat
down with it, you know, I really show you actually

how different things that I think is wrong with it,
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that many peoplerwho will not agreelwith,
especiaily Judée Henry because he is sort of a
stickler, and -- s

JUDGE HENRY: Sound like BS to me.

JUDGE: JAFFE: :Bup judges have tb have this
independence. S

JUDGE BARTS wEii, I have heard judges allude
to I think what you’'refer to.

f think judgeéuhave to have some backbone,
some spine and‘%tﬁshou1dnft be thought thét they.. .
would be easily influenced or intimidated by
external effects and ybufgre saying that, there I
think fou are saying,11 won’t put wordérin your
mouth, that they almost closettor cloistered
themgelves to the sense they ﬁgssibly‘lost touch
with the real world and possibly the contact.

JUDGE JAFFE: I think that’s very true.

I think that’s happened. for instance,
when T sat in the legislature, we would sit in this
one room with all these people and ﬁe would bhe
talking to each other, for the, for six months at a
time and pretty soon everybody started to think

that this was the real world and I would get up and

say, "Listen to yourselves talk. You are not
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talking about the real world," and then they would
talk about their cdhstituehcy there and they would -
!always talk akout their constitugncy, their
‘constituent who was a person who cared only about

;their pocketbook, cared nothing about anybody else

:aﬁd, you know, and when you, when'ydﬁ got done with

the picture you had the most awful human being in

" the ‘world painted to pass laws for. that awful

person when you got down to peoplé,,qood pecple
with.prbblems, things-likeﬂthat and just inhumane
and I fhink sometimes that that happens in the
jﬁd{giary that we just don’t, you'knﬁh,-stand up
and be counted, fdr instance, ané maybe it’s the
sign of age.

I always maintained to ﬁy good f;;ends in
+the Appellate Court that they should be thankful
for me because without me at least two panels would
;go. |

I like my cases to go up on appeal and I
have, one of the things that I am proud about is
the fact that I think that every case maybe except
one where the Appellate Court has affirmed me goes

to the Supreme Court.

.The Supreme Court has reversed the
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_ Appellate'Court, put we have got a -~ if it doesn’t

start down in the, especially in the Chancery
court, if 1t'doesn't start down, you know; with-
outside and unlees we have cognizance of what's
g01ng on in the world and unless we are end if we

4

are not d01ng the things we should be doing, ﬁhey

are not going to be done.

“ieu know people talk about activist
courts Every ¢court is an activiét court. Iiheve
never seen anyone say the 11berals areactivists.

I think conservatives are just as much if -
net more act1v1sts.

JUDGE BART: Talking about retention thee, do
you think there is any merit to statistics that
would show Judge A has been reversed sO many tlmes
as opposed £o Judge B who was reversed lessgyhen
the Supreﬁe court talks in those terms? Is that
fair? L

JUDGE JAFFE: ©No, I don’t think that’s fair. I
don’t think thatfs true the all.

JUDGE BART: And yet the electorate that you
referred to earlier might see that as the only
statistic on a judge when he comes up for

retention.
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JUDGE JAFFE: That's true, so maybé I don’t
know rea11§ what ﬁhe final conclusion is, but the
point of it is we haﬁe to insure that the judges
are independent and I have held that the Appellate
court has, always hés:tPe right to be wrong.

It doesn’t bothé£ me if they reverse me
and I will qive you anﬁéxample.

Well, do you remember the Locket rule
which youﬂwefe familiar with in administrative

reviews? L s

If you didn’t serve everybody that had to
be served, you were out. - Oné ﬁolice chief case,
yes, and I had one case En which they -- it was an
ggministrative review from, I don’t know whether it
was a pglice decision or-somethigé.elset

They named every individual on fhe board,
the mayor, a whole slew of people.

The only thing they didn’t pu£ in was the
police review board, but every person on the police
review board was named and they came in to strike
that case and get it out because they had not
complied with the statute and I said I am fully
aware of what the Locket case is.

It’s so harsh. Every human being that
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- could possibly be named has beenlnamed, All that

has not been named is an entity which really
doesn’t exist except through human beings and
therefore I am geing to hear it.

The Appellate Court reversed me and the

¢ -
!

person who wrote the opinion wrote a long opinion

on stare decisis, you see, and since that time I am

“happy to say that the legislature did.change it

somewhat. - =

It’s not perfect'yetﬁ;pyt they did change
it so that you could actually do some stuff, but I
thlnk it is important to do those thlngS* |

JUDGE FLANNERY: Let me just get in, we have
about five m}putes left.

Knooing thot your children, grandchildren
maybe your wife might be reading one day your wordsh
of wisdom here and that your friends are going to
be readlng it, anythlng else you want to talk about
that we haven’t discussed or anything else that you
have, your final great thoughts on the meaning of
life for instance? Anything else you want to say?

JUDGE JAFFE: You can’t do that in five
minutes.

You have to have at least another
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-session. You see, 1 haven’t even gotten intp my
judicial éxpetience yet and so -- off the record.
| gDiSCUSSion off the record.)

JUDGE HENRY: -But answer Judge Flannery'’s
guestion, the meanlng of life in five mlnutes and
then you can come back and footnote it at the Aext'
session. |

JUDGE JAFFE: - The meaning of life in five.

JUDGE HENRY: -And words of wisdohm to your wife
and érandkids. | e

JUDGE JAFFE: I don’t give them words of
wisdom.

I onlyﬁget them you see as Judge Flannéry

and you fully Know, that I‘m the most henpecked man

.

. in America.

JUDGE HENRY.: I think that'é the landlord q;
your apartment when you first got married.

That’s the most henpécked man in America
when your wife whittled him down to the return of
your security deposit.

JUDGE FLANNERY: All right, we are going to be
coming back for another session then possibly all
right so we are finished.

For next time we will talk about your
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judicial career.
Off the recofd.
(Discusgion off the record.)
(WHICH WERE ALIL THE PROCEEDINGS
HAD IN THE ABOVE~-ENTITLED CAQSE

ON THIS DATE.)
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JUDGE HENRY: Ready.

JUDGE FLANNERY: All right, we are going to
start talking again with Judge Jaffe about his ;
judicial career. |

And we talked a little bit about it
previously. |

Why don’t you tell us, you lefﬁlthe
Domestic RelatiaﬁérbiViéion, correct?

JUDG# JAFFE: I spent six years in D;mestic and
from there I went to LaﬂJJﬁry. | e

JUDGE FLANNERY: How iﬁng were you 1in Law/Jury?

JUDGElJAFFE: I was_lh Law/Jury forrabbut two,
three years. |

JUDGE FLANNERY: : You were?

+JUDGE JAFFE: Yes, and the truth.of the matter
is that for me, Law/Jury «--

JUDGE FLANNERY: See, we were actually Kkeeping
track. _

All right, let’s get started here.

JUDGE JAFFE: Okay.

JUDGE FLANNERY: So what we are going to do is
start picking up again with the Divorce Division
and a couple of things.

When the Divorce Division changed to the
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team concept, what were you doing then?
JUDGE JAFFE: Well, as such we broke into, I
believe it was six different teamo and each team

had four judges on it and we were given, it was

'.mayked by A, B, ¢, D, E and F and I was the

preliminary judge in tean F an§ i don’t know 1if
those letters standvfor anything at all, but
anyway, I was the preliminafyfquQé and the
prellmlnary judge in -- at that time heard all the

motions that came in w;th regard to the cases that

we had and then after -- and then also assigned the

;cases out once they were set for trlal without a

judge.
idea. It wasn’t bad.

I think it worked out pretty well and --
but in thinking about the Divorce Division I :eolly
have to think about the practioe of law in the
Divorce Division because, you know, people are
critical of lawyers who practice domestic relations
law.

I think it’s a tough practice to be in
because you are dealing with raw emotion.

It’s really a tough, tough place to be and
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associations. and I said to them, I said, you hqﬂh@ |

unfortunately people pick lawyers for their

divorces that are usually the wrong lawyers for

then.

1' once gave a talk on this beforr'?”*

?é,

matrimonial law association, one of the §G@%

"You hate your client and your cllents hate you,

which is very true in the Divorce Division and I

said, "Let ne tell you why I think youihaée your

-client and yOﬁf client hates-you."

It’s because when the clienfﬁaaes out to

get a lawyer, there igs so much emotion here that

they go out: and they look for thelr evil alter ayo.

They want to look for someone who is Jjust
iike them, put will -do all the terrible things that ...
they want to do, but cannot-do and I said so, think
about yourﬁebsolute worse client, the client that
gives --\yeu dislike the most.

I said, "If you think about that elient,
that client, that’s you," and they all laughed and
they looked around and they said, "I can see what
they are saying to the other people, yes, that true
for you, but not me," but I think that that’s an

actual fact in that particular practice.
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I mean clients change lawyers. If the
case is ih court fo:-any period of time,‘i think
they will have three and'four lawyers 1in and out,
in and out because the& are upset with their
lawyers. ' N

Thgir lawyer;géts upset with them. It’s a
very emotional type of practice and when yﬁﬁ are
sitting as a‘judge; yBu know, you have to be . able
to tune -into what people'are really talkingfabout.

You know, for instance, they have a vase
that someone actually gave them when they got
married and both of them hated that Vase,_coﬁldn’t

stand that vase, but yet when the time came to

~preak up, all of a sudden that vase is a big issue

and neither side wants the other to have it.

You have to understand that they are
really not fighting about that vase at all. They
are having a rough timé of the separation. They
are fearful, all sorts of things are going through.

Personally I think that any judge who sits
in the Divorce Division, if that Jjudge hears any
custody cases, I think that in addition to a legal

education that judge has to know something about

" child psychology and psychology in general because
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when a child is the child of divorce, that child by

. and large believes certain things.

Number one, they believe :that they caused

the divorce and I don’t care if the kid is four or

©40,_ it’s the same. They think that they caused the

divorce.

Number two, the child doesn’t want to be
;plitino matter how bad the faﬁify is.

The child usuaily wants to be with both
parents and when you are deallng with an in camera
w1th a'chlld, I used to do an awful lot of in
camer;s with kids, you have to be Yery? very
careful, you know.

Let.me give you a for instance. The worse

part of any in camera with a child would be to say.

to the child or ask the child, who you want to be

with.

The lawyers will always bé scared to death
that the judge would be asking him that. No judge
is going'to ask him that.

No judge is going to ask him that. You
know, I would understand that the child felt that
they caused the divorce and I would try to sort of

get the monkey off the child’s back by telling hinm,
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"Do you know why you are here? You are here

éecause your mom and dad are ndtugetting albhg and
they are doing things that you don’t understand,
that I don't ﬁnderstand and quite truthfully that
they don’t understand and maybe as’'time péssegrby
we are going:toih;ve to -- what, we will learn Wh;t
itvreally is all about, but we don;t know Whé£ it’s

about at fhafpresént time and your mom and dad both

.-love you," you know.

“Whut someone is going to have t&7decide

where you stay and they can’t do it and so I am

‘going to have to and so before," you know, "I makéw

my decision, I wanted to talk with you and tell you
and meet with you and tell you that I am the one
that’s going to be making that,decision because I
think you have a right to know who is making that
decision, but understand because of my thoughts, I
am not going éo make it according to ny wishes.

"It’s not your responsibility, it’s my
responsibility. You may be happy with it, you may
not be happy with it, but it’s my responsibility."

And with that I thought I would take the
guilt away from the child.

Whether or not that ever worked I don’t
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know, but, different,.you know, it’s a very strange
-« let me tell you onerstory. |

Okay, I am sure yOﬁ'are gsurprised. I am
going to be telling you alstory, but let me tell
you one story.' o

I had this dlvorce where this couple were
dividing a multimillion dollar estate and they had
settled the matter and I am 'sitting on the, on the

bench and the w1fe got up first and they talked

about the settlement and what she understood it to

be and I made sure that she understood the
settlement and that she was satlsfled with 1t and
then she got off the stand.

o Now, up comes her -husband who is a
tremendous success in the business word and he gets
on the stand and he is talking about the settlement
and how he understands it and is satisfied.

It’s satisfactor& with him and all of a
sudden I look and tears are running down his face,
and I say to him, "Is there something wrong?" And
he says to me, "She won’t give me my blocks."

I said, "Excuse me I don’t really
understand what you mean. What do you mean by

blocks? "
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He said, "I have had baby blocks all of wmy

1ife, that my parents," you know, "Gave to me as a
child and she has taken my baby blocks, and she
won’t give them back to me."

+ .. And, you know, here I am presiding over
the_diéision of a multimillion dollag;éﬁtate.

So you Jjust sort §f react to something

like that. So I said to her and I turned to her
and I séid, "Ts that true?TYou have his Blocks?"

viﬁd she said "Yes, I do."

I said, "Well, give them back to him." She

Er. -

-~

said,;“okay." And it was all over, but it was that
last piece that she had to have.
That’/s.the way couples are. They have.

something that everyone knows how to dget.

Whenever someone is married for any period

of time, one party knows how to pull the other
party?s chain and they often do and yéu get a
chance to see that.
JUDGE HENRY: One guestion about the Law
Division.
In the Law Division, over 90 percent of
the cases settle. How did that work in your

experience in the Domestic Relations Division?-
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Did_you actually have to éo to trial on a

lot of cases or did a lot of them settle? |
JUDGE JAFFE: Wéll, most of them do settle, but’

those that go tortrial last forever, really and
don’t forget, divorce cases are never ‘over. .

You know Qhen you get done WiFh the Law
Division case you are done with it. Anything tﬁat
happénS;it goééfon:aﬁpeal, but Domestic Relations
casesf#hey are always coming back. .. |

. pherers always the children. Therd&¥s

always visitation and tﬂere is always a million
other things thatéﬁhé;gstill hold onto and they
still fight over and by and large irthink that
contrary to people saying,_fOh, I had an amicable
divorce," I sort of maintain that .anybody who said.

they had an amicable divorce probably, probably are

sort of brain-dead and don’t know what’s going on

because they allt;— they all fight and it’s realiy
sad because the ones that are really hurt are thel
kids.

They have to understand for instance there
is so much that goes into it and for instance at
transfer time, the child resides with the mother

and now they are going to the father for a weekend
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or three days or whatever 1t may be.

Transfer time is a very difficult tlme‘
because the child doesn’t really know how to
react. |

It’s going from one; environment into
another and especially where;perents, there is some
friction there. | |

They know that the parents are not happy

Hdurlnq this part and so usually the child will act

'up in some way during the ‘period of transfer and

you have to understand that.

S0, I thlnk with every judqe who sits
there we ought to take a true course in psychology,
know something about child psychology,_ know
something about the psychology of individuals.going
through the divorce.

JUDGE HENRY: Even when you were in the
legislature, Aaron, when the§ adopted the
Dissolution of Marriage Act.

JUDGE JAFFE: I was the principal house sponsor
of the, I think it was the 77 Act. I know it, know
it was in the ’70s. I was one of the principal
sponsors.,

That’s the reason I wanted to go into the

11
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Divorce Division.
JUﬁGE HENRY: How did if work oﬁt in your
division?® Wés it adopted? |
‘How did it play out in court? Were you
satisfiéd_yith it? ;o
JUDQE ﬁAFFE: Well, you are nevery satisfied
with a divorce action. = #
| It’s very difficult, but I think we-let a
1ot of the things, we went,ingﬁ equitable |
digﬁflbution;‘ ﬁe went into a numbe¥ of other.
things that sor£ of leveled the playing field.
JUDGE. HEﬁgY: Dia it also take fault Qﬁtjgf the
process? #
JUDGE -JAFFE: _Qh, no, that camnme laterﬁ Actual%in
I had the first no-fault divorce, well, |
irreconcilable differences is what they ecall it.

It’s not no faglt and I can tell you a
story ab;ut Henry Hyde and myself.

Henry Hyde, when I came out of the
legislature was the assistant majority -- no, it
was the majority leader.

The speaker was Bob Hair and I had this

pill and I know, when it went into committee and I

said to the people on the committee, and I said,
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"Well, I know thig is not going to pass on the
floor of the house.r This is no fault.“}

But I sinply s%arted talking about it and
I would like to get'it on the floor of the house.
I am goiné to get"defegtgd. I know that.

I think it’s important as a legislator to
bring up matters because the only way younare going
to get thgm discﬁéééd iffyou put then info the
publicarena and the committee was nice.eﬂgugh.

We hadwgﬁcommitﬁee 6f about 22 pedple &na
at that time you didn’t havé,to have a majority of
the commitﬁee. -

Now it’s a majority of committee voters to

.~ get it want out of the committee.

You had to have a majority of those voting
and T think I had it on the 22 number committee on
a vote of three to two with about 16, you know,
present votes on the”thingsiénd we went to the
floor of the houseI@nd we went to the floor of the
house.]|

Henry Hyde spoke against the bill and the
way it worked basically is that the speaker calls
upon the sponsor of the bill to talk about the bill

and then turne to somebody who is against it and

13
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that’s that split and going back and forth until
everybody has spdkéh. _'
| T don’t know if I should put the story in
my oral history but I will, because it’s, it’s a
atter of public record anyway.

S0 Henry qot up and thls was the no-fault
divorce bill and prlor to that time you needed two
witnesses, and so Henry spoké against the bill.

He said,JﬂThis is a terrible bill,
terfiblé bill. What ybu are ‘going to do is you are
901ng to permit perjury to take place.“ 

| Of course per]ury was taklng place under
the old bill and you had to have a witness and say
people had, they had with their problems Egere was
physical cruelty.or something like that.

Usually no one is around. What you do is

if you are a lawyer you would pull in a relative

who would come in to testify on that.

There was an awful lot of the perjury and
this would have done away with perjury. Henry went
on to say it was, in addition to saying it’s a bad
bill, "There’s a hooker in this bill; that is, no
corroborative witnesses," and he said, "That is a

very bad -hooker because that's going to lead to all

14
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sorts of perjury."

So he said, "So even it you afe for the
bill," 1 was a'freshman at that time, T thiqk it
was ny firsﬁ term that Henry was the majority
leader. = .

Sq;hé said, "So don‘t fall for that AOAker
and don‘t vote for the bill becaﬁée it’s gding to,
it’s goiﬁéfto:pfoduce perjury," and I got up in my
?esponse to him  at the end and I éaid, you knéw; ny
héve hggfd the ﬁajofity leader speék afd "I nmust '
concede one thing,J,I said, "And that is when it
cgmes to hookéré? the majorityAleader is far_ﬁofg
knowledgeable than I am," and,-ydu know, everybody
laughed and my bill o;hcourse went down the drain
put Henry, Henry and I always got along very well.

I always thought he was a nice guy even
though he differed in the, in policy far different
from the poiitics we have.

There was a lot of things in the divorce
field. It was a very challenging, draining call if
you do it right.

JUDGE FLANNERY: Overall did you like the
Diveorce Division?

JUDGE JAFFE: I liked the Divorce Division, I

15
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did, and-I felt that they were getting a bad rap
because 6f“the fact tﬁat they have to havé’a lot 6f
things that are handled, in all the other
courtrooms. |
They have to,handle property. They- have
to know taxeg. You hévg ﬁo“know this, you have to
know that aﬁd it was, it was, 1t was very, v;ry
challending and when the funny case came along, it
was a very, ;ery funny case, sometimes I =-- _
JUDGE HENRY : 'ﬁﬁb were some of the judges you'%*f
worked with?
Do Y6u recall tpét?@
JUDGEVJAFFE: I mean Herman Nell who ﬁassed
away and Bob Cusack who is in the Probate Division.
. Still he was sort of my mentor. He was
really sort of an excellent judge there. Hy
Feldman was there.
There were an éwful lot of judges.
JUDGE FLANNERY: When would this have been
approximately?
JUDGE JAFFE: It was probably from 1980 to -~ I
am sorry, 1981 to about 1986 I think and then I
went to the, to the «»-

JUDGE HENRY: Law Division.
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JUDGE JAFFE: w—.Law Division.
JUDGE FLANNERY: Vﬁéfore the Law Division just
one qﬁick question. j
| -Who were some of the bettef divorce
attorneys who appeared before you? .
iUﬁGE JAFFE: 1 always maintaine@ ﬁith lawyers
there are no great hotsﬁbts. J

I mean some have great’fébutations because

they have PR guys, but I -- well, some-of the

““1awyers that I thought were gdé¥geous were, Howard

Rosenfeld.was a good lawyer and yet you ddn’t think
of bimﬁzn the divorce fiéid, but he'wasﬁ}eally an
excellent lawyer and knew how to try a case and at
that time Bop&McNish. o

I am talking about guys you never héard
of .~ Bob McNish was the head of the-:Matrononial
Commnittee at the CQVA and he was a guy I very oftep
cailed upon to, you know, to be an'éttorney for thé
child and was just excellent.

There were -- let me just think. I liked
the oldest of the Nellen brothers. He was a good
attorney.

He was sensible. By that, I mean the

people I am -talking about were sensible. people.
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They actually had their client’s interests at heart
aﬁd that was a long time ago. |

I can’t feally remember all of them, hut'
there was also-some very bad ones that really
should not have been practicing in that fiéldr;_
because, you kpo@,when you deal with children-yéu
havé to be very, very extra sensitiﬁé. ”

T will tell you a funny stdry. For
insﬁance I would never have parents éring their
childfen ififo the dourfroom. | e

It’s bad enoﬁgh that they see the «-
nqticé the pareﬁfs#;re fighting and héve to see:r
them fighting in the courtroomn and one day I was

sitting on the bench and_.I didn’t realize this, but

~Judge Preston who was then a representative came

into the courtroom with his daughter and I had a
court clerk who was just magnificent.

She w;s a lady probably close to 80. ﬁer
name was Angie she was so good with people.

The last thing you need in a courtroom
like that is a ten foot tall muscular deputy who
say is going to threaten people when they get all

upset.

Angie would come up to people and say,
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"Now, now, Jerry, I kn0W'it's been a rough day for
you. TIt’s hard. Wwhy don;t you sit down and T will
get you a glass of water?" i |

She handled that dourtroom perfectly and
everybody just Tiked her*and”everything else, but
nonetheless Preston came ig—ﬂo ﬁisit my courtroom
and he had his daughter with hin.

At that time she %as'ih her early teens

and my deputy threw her out of "the courtroom

‘because there were no children. -

Preston still holds it aéainst me. He says
this is the qnlyrbourtroom hé ﬁ;g been thrown Qut'
of.

JUDGE FLANNERY: Were-you going to ask a
guestion?

JUDGE HENRY: Who was the presiding judge in
your tenure in the Domestic Relations Division?

JUDGE JAFFE: Well, thé initial presiding judge
was Jorzak and then Napa came in.

JUDGE HENRY: What about the Law Division? You
were there a short time?

JUDGE JAFFE: VYes, I was there for a couple of
years and Harry comerford, I really had a great

deal of respect for Harry Comerford, nice guy.
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Never got the credit that he really
deséfved, I think. I thiﬁk he wantgd to put me in
chancery;.and, but I said, "No, thanks,"

| So he put me into the Law Division and the
Law “Division as I saw it is'a good rglption, but it
was rgaily wasn’t, wasn’t my cup of teg;i |

I mean I enjoyed ié, it was)challenging
as all divisions are challenging, but’'I sort of
liked to be more involved iﬂ the process bhecause
when you are in the Law Division,™When you are
hearing Law/Jﬁry cases, because putting in a jury
sort oﬁ-bé;;mes redundant. |

I know it varieé from case to case, but it
becomes-somewhapﬁroutine. Giving instrgctions,ﬁx‘
would fall asleep during the giviné of
instructions.

I can imagine how the jury felt, but it
was, i; was a good, you know, division:

JUDGE FLANNERY: And what about, when did you
go into chancery?

JUDGE JAFFE: I went into chancery when the
presiding judge was Curry and he was a very,
very bright man, very bright man and very sensible

and =--
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JUDGE FLANNERY: Did you know Judge Curry
befofe you workéa with him in the Chéhcery
Division? |

JUDGE JAFFE: ‘Not really. Not really.

I think I may have met him before, ydu;
know, a couple of;timeé, but never, never knew him,
you kn§w, and was friendly with him afger I came-én

the bench.

. He was very unigue. I had/thié whole load . -

of cases'and%fjhad my"caléndar and he héd the“staff
and he said, "Let me maké_a suggestion to you.
Don’t héér any casgé f;f the first month or so.
Just, you are getting a calendar thaf’s been workeé
on. Why don’t you just cal;;in everybody in all
these cases and see where they are . and what you
have to do on them;" and frankly with the lawyers -
which I did, which may sound very simple, but it
was an excellent éuggestion.

once I had my count, I know what I had to
do with all these various and sundry cases and he
was essentially and of course he was followed by
Judge Dunne, "Moose," who 1 became very, very close

with.

He and I, I had the courtroom just down
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the hall from him and lawyers who appeared before
Judge Dunne would always, were always terrified
because he was, number one, physically a big guy,

and number two, you know, there was -no nonsense in

. _his courtroom and he was also very, very bright,

_but off the bench he was compLeﬁely different and

he was just a very kind, warm human being and on

_occasion we would play litfié'pradtical jokes on

‘each other because I walked into the courtroom one

day and every time I moved ‘around I heard a frog

chlrplng and it turned out he had put an electronic

froq, you know, in my courtroom and no ohe knew

about it except the two of us, you see because no

. one -- everybody could hear the.chirping someplace

else.

I had put things on his bench when he
would come out very often would crack him up gnd we
would be doing these things wifh each other.

He was just so, so, he was just so -- when
he passed away I was Jjust, you know, heartbroken
over his passing because I saw him go from, you
know, bkig hulk, healthy hulk of a man.

He was getting sicker and sicker and it

was it was not easy to watch, but he was a great
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presiding judge.

B If I had to say, thé one presiding judge
that I had that I most admired, it was Judqe‘
bunne. Hé was always there for you.

He knew how to handle‘people;:ng_was a
kind pergph; ;ery bright.

You could come to him with any guestion

.and hé_ﬁauld try to help you in any possible way he

- could.

“FUDGE HENRY: His grandfathér was governor of
Illinois, ié thaﬁ,right?

JUDGE ?AF%%: I believe so.”

JUDGE HENRY: And his uﬁcle was the presiding
judge of probate.

JUDGE JAFFE: VYes, it was a great family and
he, I consider having served with him to be a honor
really because he was so good.

JUDGE=HENRY: Did you just, when you worked for
him in the Chancery Division was that the first
time you became acquainted with him?

JUDGE JAFFE: Yes, yes, and, you know, if you
know the difference between the two of us, I mean
here he was football player from the University of

Michigan.
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I was not a football player and it was, it
would-séem just loﬁking for the backgroﬁﬁds of the
two of us you would thiﬁk those two guys would
never get along, but ﬁe got along very well and got
along extremely well.

JUDGE HENRY: Thgn'who became the presiding
judge afte? Judge Dunne? |

-Was thatuéu&ge Bérth, Judge Barth became‘ 

-= Judge éarth_was here. "

Fifst 6% 'all he is not here today,rbutlﬁgj
admires you very much and he:was here for the
second parﬁlof the intgrvi;w and the reasoﬁ‘he

can’t be here today he promised his daughter he

.~.would take care of her four children today so he

sends :his regrets.

JUDGE FLANNERY: What are some of the types of
cases you heard in éhancery and what were some of
the more notable caseé you had in chancery?

JUDGE JAFFE: Notable cases.

Well, chancery first of all we hear, you

know, extraordinary remedies.

We hear injunctive relief. We hear
specific performance. We have environmental
spills. We have class actions.
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We also hear foreclosures which I
absolutely despise.'
b | I mean I don’t mind foreclosures that are

commercial foreclosures and because those are

" different than when you have foregclosures when you

gré throwing people out of their‘hdUses and

unfortunately, foreclosures where you throw people

;ouﬁ of houses, usually they result from nortgages

very often that very often should never have been

givéﬁ'tojbegin with.
].That’s because the mortgage companies
sbouig have known the individual gﬁafﬁéot this
mortgage couldn’t ﬁay it off and it’s -- I don’t
think that.the hortqage lawyers of . the wor;g
particularly love.me, but because I am sort of

sympathetic to somebody who is being thrown out of

" their house and I realize there are people that

ﬁlay the system and they know what to do with
mortgage foreclosure and they know how to stall and
so on and so forth, but people who are thrown out
of their house, they can’t afford lawyers.

They are coming to court, usually they are
pleading for a little bit more time, you know, to

stay in the house so they can det money together to
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rent an appartment or do something like that. It’s

sad so ==

JUDGE HENRY& Do you also do administrétive:
reviews in chancery?

JUDGE JAFFE: oh, yes, administrative reviews.

JUDGE HENRQ:. Do you see a lot of activitylag
the various administrative agenciés of govefnment?

How do you think that process runs as far

. as the justice being done in those cases?

JUDGE JAFFE: Well, that’s a very gd&od
guestion. |
| As I€§a§T first of all, I'have my dogﬁtéﬁ

as to whether or not administraﬁive hearings, but
before it comes from governmental bodies is really
a due process of law.

Let me give you an example. You have
agencies where the agency is:the prosecutor.

The;agency designates who hears the base,
you know, and they have another person at the
agency making the decision.

Now, I don’t think that that’s fair and I
don‘t think that you really get your day in court

when that happens and yet the rules about those

cases are number one, 'vou have to give deference to
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the hearing officer as to factual issues, you know.

We reverse it if it’s against the manifest

weight of the evidence or it’s absolutely contrary

to the law which is a vefy, very high standard and

and let’s face it, like I am not pointing to any

particular party.

I have heard cases of the administrafion

of a lot of different secreétaries of state, but by

and large the people there. who are doing tpesé

‘drunken driver, who likes a drunken driver?

cases are in great FTear that if you say you have a

Absoiﬁtely no one, but the rules are such

that they can keep a drunken driver off the street

forever and they bend over backwards in order to
not give .the -- give the license back and, very
often the thing that pops into my mind is that
when, you know, when does this stop being

punishment?

I mean when does it become just, become a

political decision because they think that someone

is going to go out and do this again.
What agencies would rather do, I am not
saying this is true of any agency today, but is

their answer is we won’t give him . his driver’s
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“their

1license.

Let him go into court and let the judge be

the ibad guy, and so very often we are the bad guy,

but I

have had cases where individuals were found

guilty of drunken driving and they hadn’t received

their

would

license back for seven, eight 'years and it

come before me and they was no evidence of

then drinking after that we would géet letters from

their

still

where

eiiployers and other persons, okavi;: and pay

fine and get a whole stack full of stuff, but

and all they wouldn’t be giving themn hack.

_rThey were entitléd to —-=- you_hagé a place

someone works 1in construction, has to be on

the job at 6:00 or 7:00 o‘clock in the morning. and

his wife is also working and she has to drive him

to the construction site and she has-to get up at

4:00 o’clock in the morning to do it and she has a

job herself and she has to take care of the kids

and you see people and it really becomes a terrible

thing to that particular family.

Now, 1f the guy is in fact a person who is

habitually drunk and he should be off the street, I

am not disputing that for a second, but where you

do it

for political purposes and so that you don’t
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get a bad rap in the paper, I think that thatfs a
tragedy and I know you mentioned thls beforehand
but you asked this'question, what’s my philosophy
of the law. |

I think the law has to be a 'level playinq
field‘above all. 1y§ﬁ know, I have been in the
legielature and I know that there are‘lobbyists-and
1obbylsts are more influential now than they wereA‘
when I was in the leglslature 20 years ago.

| I Mean there were still lobbylsts “hbut you
know we have more control by leadership now than
you had in those{dafgrand let’s face it, we are
going to a presidential election new.

Each one.of the candidate will spend how,
many millions of dollars, $15,000,000,
$100,000,0007 I don’t Kknow.

The funds are endless and the legislature
is by and large khe same way because who is goiné
to lobby for an individual who really has no voice.

Nobody is going to lobby for him. You
have some, some do-gooder groups, but they are not
very, you know, influential, don’t have the
wherewithal to have their voice heard, so on and so

forth and I think the last place that’s here, that
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remains the cornerstone of our democracy.
I don’t mean to get preachy on this or
anything else to that fact, but our courtrooms and

when someone comes into our courtroons, you know,

it has to be a level playing field and if the

judges do not make it a levgl:playing field, if

they are intimidated by either one, some statute or

'the stature of the attorney who 'is not doing their
“ Job, I take an awful long -- when I get a pro se i

take an awful long time with a pro se.

In the Law Division when you waiting for

another law jury cases you uguaily don’t have a pfb

se, but we get then.

. For instance, we have peopleﬁyho can’t pay
their mortgage, don’t have lawyers and they are pro
se and I realize the law is you treat everyone as
though they were a lawyer, but that’s not
reasonable. 2

S0 you have to somewhat balance that and
make sure that you get the full story before you,
before you leave.

JUDGE FLANNERY: You don’t have jury trials in
chancery.

You think if someone asked you for a jury,
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I;meén, how do you feel about the types of issues
you decide in chancery witﬁout the benéfit of
having the-riqht to have a jury, jury tpiai before
you? | |
jUDﬁEWJgFFE: Well, there are legal, issues
involvéd;: There are legal isgues involyed..

We could try the entire thing and have a
jurf; TJuét!have to decide who is going to decide
what. | "
o I ﬁill decide the eqﬁitabigﬁissue'énd they
would decidg:the legal issues, the issues of féct
and whatmoti | | |

I like calling the shots myself and the
reason I'like calling the shots because I think
that I try to do the best that I can and if
somethiﬁg goes up on appeal and I an reversed, so I
am re&e;sed.

I don’t consider being reverseé a big
deal. I know there are many judges who will bend
over backwards not to be reversed, but let me give
you an example.

We had in the, what you call it, in the
administrative reviews that which was called the

Locket Doctrine and the Locket Doctrine basically
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sald this.

o When yoﬁ.filed your appeal iﬁ”the Circuiﬁ
Court 1f you left goméone out that should be i
joined, that pgrsoﬁ, the person that filed an
appeal was out. “ .

ﬁThey have;td:join everybody. I? they
don’t join, it’s defective and out it goés.

. So I had a case where I think it was an
appeal f;om a police board. They, the piaintiff
who brought iﬁTLBe madé'thé village, all the =%
officers of the Village ana all the members of the
police_béérd. T

However he left out of the title the
police board in the village @f so and so, which
according to the Locket Doctrine made it defective
and the village camé in and said the guy is out and-~
T said this is bizarre.

Every huma; being that could be notified
has been notified and what you are doing is that
you are taking a fictitious name and saying of
course that hasn’t been put in; you throw it out.

I say, I know that the Appellaté Court
will frown on my decision, but I said it’s about

time that the Appellate Court realized that it’s a
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silly doctrine.

I mean aﬁd I made aﬁ“record of it. It’s a
éilly doctrine and somebody shquld not be denied
their right to a rehearing.

It doesn’t guarantee that they will win,

"but they should not be denied anf hearing because

they left six lawyers out of a complaint.
Well, they went upﬂéﬁ-appéal and I was
reversed, naturally, and the judge who I shall not

mention, wrote a long and Somewhat silly opinion on

stare decisis and danced about this guestion for a

little period of time.

I am happy to report that because I did

that, the. legislature picked up on it and, they

changed the doctrine somewhat, not totally, but.

“-somewhat and so I was -- but I was happy about

that, but I think that judges have to do that.
I really think that we -- you can’t have a
-- somewhat listen to that, that little voice

inside of you which I call your justice button and

have to do those things. You can’t.
JUDGE HENRY: Somebody told me one time Judge

O0’Brien, Sr., was in the legislature back in the

50s.
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He felt that everybody should serve in the
legislature before they become a judge so they
could have! an appreciation for the legislativé

process and then focus that experience into the

" real life .decision-making respohsibility they have

in individual cases and to paraphrase it ano?her

way, Phil Rock who was the president of senate as

you know at oné time, said that they legislate in

‘broad brushes and leave it to the judge to do~

justfgé}and fairness in the individuaT case.
First, dé you agree with Judge O’Brien

ﬁhat havingébeg; a legislator_giﬁes you the{ébiiity
to look at legislation throuéh a legislator’s eyes
to understand it and.a judge’s eye to apply .it to
an individual and what do you think about Phil
Rock’s admonition to us, when we pass legislation
we may not have any quote "legislative intent" but
we were doing it for all people similarly ;ituated
and we want you the judge to deal with the
individual and we don’t care if it follows us or
not?

JUDGE JAFFE: Well, I would tell you that when
individuals come before me and they argue

legislative intent and as a legislator I have been
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quoted a few cases because I was involved in the
debate. ; |

They argue with iegislative intent. I
used to teach at prolé. I used to teach
1eqislativellaw and '1 was told there was no'
legislativeﬁintent by;;ahd you have a body of the
house is made up of a hundred people, whate;er it
may be and when I fif;t weﬁt into legislatﬁre, it
was 177.- “

8o you ngé 177 Vétiné on an object; How =
do I know, would I know why MfJ ¢ or M or ¥, you
know, voted 6n a particplaéwbill? |

What was their intent? How do yéu get an
~intent from an entire body? I have to somewhat
agree with Mr. O’Brien.

I mean we know, you know, if it’s an -- if
it’s a statute againét mnurder, we know that the
legislative intent is,hyou know, is against nurder,
murder, but to try to, you know, get my point.

I sort of have to agree with Rock, that
the legislature helped me in judging. I think it
did to some extent.

It probably helped me in that I realized

" that when a pliece of legislation came to me it
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" wasn’t a piece of holy -~ it wasn’t a holy document

. that came down from the mountain.

! Basically, I understand h'ow, understood

how people passed legislation and I thought that we

3a$ judges sometimes glve to the leglslatlon and

where they, they place qnd where I thlnk they miss

1nterpret1ng three dlfferent words, probably no one

has seen me about that at all and I thlnk it helped
me. :

The legislature was.ﬁigreat ékpefience for
me. IE{was a great experience becaﬁse yoﬁ got to
neet ééople from all_ovef the state. B

You got to know how they thought and, you
know, where-they were coming from and so it -helps.
I think every life ‘experience helps you when you
are a judge.

JUDGE HENRY: Five minute break.
(Whereupon, there was a brief
pause in the proceedings.)
JUDGE FLANNERY: Of those cases that pop into
your head either was an appeal from a
constitutional issue or if you have one that just

jumps into your head.

JUDGE HENRY: You may even want to talk about
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the one affirment you had.

V-AAre there some chancery cases fhat you
remember that are either-very interesting,
factually important tb you, important to the systen
that you can talk about?

JUDGE_JAFFE: We}l;,yes, there are quiFe of few
of them actually. |
-Sort of fﬁnhy.  My law clerk is doing some

research on a particular subject matter. and he said

to me, you know:?ﬁﬁhe first three cases that I
found were your cases." You don’t find that very
often.

JUDGE FLANNERY: No.

JUDGE JAFFE: But, all right. Well, first let
me say I think that I was sort of meant to be a
trial judge.

I think that being a trial judge is really
a great thing because_you are down there with the
people.

I mean you are not up in some ivory tower
reading transcripts or having transcripts read for
you by someone.

You are down there and you are living with

the people in your courtroom and when you give a
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~ the one affirment you had.

Are there some chancery cases that you
iemember that are either very inﬁerestinq,
factually important to you, important to the system
%hatmyou can talk aboét? B

JUDGE JAFFE: Well, yes, there ‘are guite of few

of them actually.

Sort of funny. My law clerk is doing some

reéeérchron a particular subject matter and he said

to me; you know, "The first ﬁhree cases.that I
found were your cases." You don’t find that very
often.

JUDGE FLANNERY: No.

JUDGE JAFFE: But, all right. -'Well, first let
me say I think that I was sort of meant to be a
ﬁ}ial judge.

I think' that being a tfigl judge is really
a great thing because you are down there with the
people.

I mean you are not up in some ivory tower
reading transcripts or having transcripts read for
you by someohe.

You are down there and you are living with

the peoplé in your courtroom and when you give a
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decision'you have to give them a decision and you
have to eyeball, you Kknow.

So?there’s no running away fromn itq So I
thlnk of all of the courtrooms, the best courtroom
is the trlai courtroom because that really has
really emotion in it and it has real peoplefand I
think everybody that sits in a real courtroom
should be commended for the work that they do, bﬁt
gettlng on to some of the cases. i

Well the;e s one case that igaﬁh the
insurance field that if you read just about any
insurance case, any insurance case at all, they
always come up with a case called Wausau versus
EHLCO or EHLCO versus“Wausau. That’s E~h~l-c=-o0.

It was an environmental spill case where
there were agout 135 different areas that wegé
under conténﬁion with maybe a hundred lawyérs, 90
lawyers or whatever it may be, a multitude of
insurance companies and every time we would call
this case the entire courtroom would get up and we
referred -- we had to break it down into committees
and whatnot and then and then we decided to try it,

some in piecemeal and there was one case that went

up on appeal and the Appellate Court reversed me.

38



10

11

12

13

T 14

15

16

i7

18

12

20

21

22

23

24

It went up on to the Suprene Court and the -
Suprenme Coﬁrt affirmed me on it and it bec%me one
of the notable cases in'the -- in the field of
insurance law.

Nowhyou are Qoinq to ask me what the point
was, what thg.basis was; lThere were so many
different disputes in that field that I cannot

really at this moment, you‘fnow, think of what, why

was 1t out in Wausau VersustHLCO, but every time

pecople came before ﬁé and they, you know, they

"would say and your case of Wausau versus EHLCO,

made a big .deal to the insufance lawyers.

Incidentally, this is not a notable case,
but this happened to me yesterday«-~

"I had an appeal from the Secretdary of
State’s office for a, for a minor and it was a due
process question becauée_they do not give the same
due process to a minor as they do to an an adult.

I had a case where I ruled that was
improper and that the minor is entitled to the same
due process as the adult was.

The Supreme Court reversed me on it and
yesterday they argued a case, they argued a very

similar case in my courtroom, and the lawyer who
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- was arguing for the minor was not aware that this

case was my case, you see, and he tried to convince
me ihét that case was not, you know! iﬁ line with
the cases we had in front of us and I said, "I
Ehfnk"ypu have Qot the w%ong judge 6nﬁt@at one."

I said, "That was my case{; I got

reversed. I took the position you did and the

SupreﬁeicOurt reversed me S0 T dﬁn:t think I am
coming w1th you this time.

| | So I thought that was‘sort of a funny
thingrth§t happened to me, yes, you knowl
yesterd;y. | )

Probably the most distressing case that I
have ever had;- I won’t say that I have ever had,
there’s another one that was, that one was there
and this sort of -- well, was the auditorium
tﬁegter case and the reason that if was so
distressing to me was because of the fact that it
initially came before me and I decided a summary
judgment after examining hundreds and hundreds and
hundreds of documents.

What happened in that case was that the
auditorium theater counsel maintained there was a

trust created by Roosevelt University for the --
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really_a_personal-attack on me which I tqok
personaliy and if you read the decision fbu would
understand that it isia personal attack.

I never saw a decision gquite written in
that fashion and it was a decision in which they
criticized me because tﬁey said they thought that I
did such things as say certain people were credible
and certainspeople_ﬁéfezhoi credible and it_was a

very, very harsh opinion.

I have sééh one like that similar, but,
since then but I won’t getﬁinto that at this
moment, but énd they said;;well, you have.gof to do
it over again.

They didn’t reverse me -and they said you
have got to do it over again and at the same time
this was costing both sides attorneys’ fees in the
amount of millions of dollars.

It was really in my view an abuse of
process and they wanted to and their order was send
it back to me.

I will tell you the thing that disturbed
me worse of all is that they did not come out with

a decision after hearing it and having heard oral

" argument for a couple of vears and it’s just
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for the use of the auditorium‘theater counsel which
was really just a comedy because the University, at

1
the time when Roosevelt University was ready to

develop and they malntalned that they basically had

zzthe -= there was, they had no legal right to the

theater or anything else to that effect and they

_flled a suit and I granted the summary judgment

motlon in favor of Roosevelt Unlver51ty and the

Appellate Court said, "No,™" you know "You can’t do B

it. You have to have a factual hearlng

Well, I had a factual hearing .which took
up ‘more than a month’s time in which I heard dozens
of witnesses and came to the conclusion that it
was, I was &Bsolutely right the first time,%;

There was Bothing there. There was
noghing there. The counsel, that ghe auditorium
eopnsel was entitled to and I ruled in favor of
Roosevelt University and I set a bond because it’s
a valuable piece of property.

The Appellate Court did not wish to have
them paying for the bond and so on and so forth
and, but getting to the heart of the issue.

After trying the case, the Appellate Court

camne down w1th a decision and the decision wasgs
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really a personal attack on me which I took
personally and if You read the decision You would
understand that it is a personal attack.

I never saw a decision quite wrltten in
that fashion and it was a de0151on in Whlch they
crltlclzed me because they saiqd they thought that I
did such thlngs as say certain people Were credlble

and certaln people were not credible and it was a

, very, very harsh oplnlon

T have seen one like that similar, but,

since then but I won’t get into that at this

_moment but and they said, well, you have got to do

it over again.

They didn’t reverse me and they said you
have got to do it over again and at the sSame tlme
this was costlng both sides attorneys’ fees in the
amount of mllllons of dollars.,

it wés really in my view an abuse of
process and they wanted to ang their order was send
it back to me.

I will tell vyou the thing that disturbeg
me worse of all is that they did not come out with
a decision after hearing it andg having heard oral

argument for a couple of years ang it’s just
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waiting and waiting.

At the same time fhis decision was
sittinga the auditorium theater was in the hands of
the auditorium theater counsel.

;~Th@y took it up on éppeal beéaﬁse one of
the jusfiées on the panel said, you knqﬁ,:this is
absolutely silly.

o Thére’s no way. I cgn use £h;.wofd,

silly. Hé-éaid, "T am even saying in the'fécord,

théfé's no way}that these people caﬁﬁﬁrevaii'in
this 1awsuitL There is nothipg here, absoluyely
nothing heré," and the Sup:emelCourt took iérand
reversed the Appellate Court and affirmed me
unanimously without a second vote and it bothered--
me because of the fact tHat I had a case that I
thoughtf§as, I will be kind and say, misﬁandled, by
the Aﬁp%llate Court and: should have ne&e? have been
there that long and never have caused an
educational institution millions of dollars in
attorneys’ fees.

JUDGE HENRY: A private institution?

JUDGE JAFFE: .Pardon?

JUDGE HENRY: A private institution.

JUDGE JAFFE: Private institution, yes, but it
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would have been'bad if it was a public institution
too, you know, because education in this country .
costs too much mone&, but that was one of the cases{
on the funny side of it.

"If you ﬁaﬁtmtomqet into humeroué cases - ' .
that I have had, this=one is before the Supreme
Court I_think right now or the Appellate Court. I
don’t kn?w Whetﬁér?itjs:Supreme or Appel;ate Coﬁftj

It had to do‘with the last gentlemen’s

club in the Cigi?of chicagq and this one has béé£
pending for a 1long time,ﬂtoo.

If I get into ;he details, I may be here
for 14 hours, but --

JUDGE FLANNERY: You have:whet our appetite,
beliave me.

JUDGE JAFFE: But what happened in that case is
that according to‘t@e ordinance, you cannot have
nude dancing in an establishment that has liguor.

So in order to get around that, the City
of Chicago has written an ordinance that describes
what the -~ and, you kXnow, what the dancers must
have covered in order to be within the right
parameters and if you read the statute I think it

will bring a smile to your lips, but the funny part
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of the case was the trying of the case itself and I
have asked one of the lawyers if they have a copy
of the transcript because I thinhk this transcript

was just, it was the funniest case I have ever,

‘ever tried and everybne, youhkﬂow, all the lawyers

 and everyone else just enjoyed!this case

tremendously.

o I held that“the ordiﬁ;ncé ﬁas improper and
uhécnstitutional anduit’s up in the upper courts
right now, but the one, oﬁg?ihing fhatlit taught me

was that if you hear testimony which conflicts

‘between the vice officer and the: stripper, believe.

the stripper every time.
~Ft was just hysterical that case. Let me

tell you why I say that because I just don’t want

“to leave the record in that shape, but there was a

-- the Ccity of Chicago must have spent a fortune
in prosecuting this case which in my mind is sort
of a nothing case, but they had vice officers who
came to this gentlemen’s club and primarily this
gentlemen’s club was for visitors, you know, to the
City of Chicago.

They sent them with cameras in their ties

and the vice officers were taking these pictures
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with the camera in their tie, you know, and you -~
it was very, very funny and shall I give you just a

little bit of what I recall.

Bits of it may not be totally accurate,

4

but -- o R

JUDGE HENRY: Don’t let that .stand in ﬁhe’way
of a good story.
JUDGE JAFFE: Okay, but the offlcer testlfled

that the dancer came to him at the table

The dancer would do dances at the tablé
fpr extra moneyﬁﬂnot lap dances as they are callgdf
but just dances and he maintained that this dan;er
came to his table and she had long hair and she
threw her hair over his head and nibbled on his
ears or something like that and the City attorney

-- this is{hot what you expect in an oral ﬂistory,
right, bu£ okay, and he said --
JUDGE HENRY: Never mind.
JUDGE JAFFE: And he said, and the guestion was
asked, "Did you find that dance erotic?" And the
officer said, "Yes, I found it erotic.®

Okay, and so in cross-examination the

other attorney said, "You say that you found it

erotic, is that correct? And when you felt erotic,
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how did that feel?"

He said, "Well what do you mean,<how did
it feel?" He said, "Weil, did you have any feelings
apbout it being erotic?"

Heasaid, "Nb,;Imdidn't have any feeling."
He said, "But you said;iﬁ was erotic. You sgid,
rYes, it was erotice,’ and you had no feelings?"

He said, “af_coufge not. I am a vice

officer. "

it was ve}§ funny;'but the testimony wit;ﬁﬁ

that was similar to that, but I can tell you
stories about that caseéfogever, but it was arvery,
very funny case.
S Not one of the great monumental cases that
will go“down in history, but that was a "funny case
for me. |

JUDGE HENRY: We Qi}l have to wait to read the
Appellate Court opinion. It may be a monumental
case.

JUDGE JAFFE: Well, maybe, but I do like cases
with constitutional gquestions. I do like that.

JUDGE HENRY: Does another one pop inte your

head?

JUDGE JAFFE: I am just trying to think of ==
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JUDGE HENRY: Just the stories you remenber.
Do you have any tax cases, school funding
ca%es, anything with major implications on a

statewide basis, the cases where you ruled

un‘constitutional, an acﬁ, because it”violated the

sihgle subject matter?
JUDGE JAFFE: Subject matter?

JUDGE HENRY: VYes. Did you consider that a

: significant case?

JUDGEZJAFFE: Oh, yes, it was significant

becausg@of‘the fact that the legislatur? which is
sometimes -- well, let me‘back up and ;ay, the
legislature sort of has a love-hate relationship
with the bench. e
They know that the bench rules on what
thé§ say and the legislature always?is angry at the
ﬁugges for some reason. ‘
I never guite understood it, but they are,
each part of the government is sort of antagoenistic
to the other part of government and I, actually the
legislature is antagonistic to the judicial because
they realize that we have the power to say, okay,

what is unconstitutional.

As a result of that I find very often the
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judicial.is-somewhat intimidated by the legislature
and will bend over, will do anything that they
possibly can tb ﬁphold whatever the legislature
does no matter how bad it is.

| Noﬁ;;consiitutions favor Iilinois,xsaysm
that all bills shall be single-subject matter;biils

and at the end of each session and I think this

goes to your prior-question, what did -- what did 1

learn from the législature and I think this is a
case wheféP;he leéiSlgture did help. -

I did understand that there are several
bills that legislative leaders hold Eack which areg
known as your dealer bills and I don’t mean that in
a bad sense. : e

The time when they hold all important
matters, the v;Eancies matter and sort of negogiate
them all at éng time which by ‘itself could bé a
good process, but that’s when they make their deals
on all these bills and very often what they would
do is lump them into one bill so that everybody
votes for it and their thing is accomplished.

Well, the bill that I am talking about
started off as a two-page bill on probation

officers.

49
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Wwhen it wound up_it'was a 300~-page il
£ with underqround storage tanks for

wiretapping. !

T dealt with just doiens of issues ang
, itv

1 in one bill. S

Now what happens when. the legislature

amends tnose pills 1is they will change the tiﬁ:lEiJ
N T N ) ) of

the pill.

Tnis is an @ n officers

ct of probatio

you can widen the title sometimes.

you can S3aYy gell this is an act deayj
. ng

with the_crime or somethlng else‘%b that efj“act

v I actually,

12
membeXY what the-tltle
wasg

I don’'t re

13 - bu

14 of th;ﬁbillf put it was, there was nOEE}ng that
157 could gover all of these things and tﬂey came to p
16 and 1 yuled on the bill. : e
; 1 ‘ruled the pill was unconstitutional ang

17
1 ruled that they had to adhere ro the consti
tutlon

18
19 to have single subject matter, You know, bililg

I and
20 to WY nind +hat was the first rime someone hag
4 that portion of the constitution.

enforce®
Was that 2 portion of the

JUDGE HENRY!

22
Constitution prioxr to 1970 or wWas fhat somethi
. ng

21

23
as first included then? Do you know b

24
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‘branch of government that is the most responsive to

the people because it gi&es their reasoning in
writihq." ; |
JUDGE JAFFE: That’s right.
* JUDGE HENRY: And we are talking about the
appellaée level and T know“many of thg ﬁudges in
the chancery level give written opinions as to --

judges in motion calls here in the Law piiision, 80

you don’t have to speculate about why théy decided

oSt o

a case. -fhey tell you why.
JUDGE‘JAfFE: Yes. Whenever I hear a trial or
a contest;d motion I dOWrifé something. -

Well, I would tell you that I talked about
the Roosevelt case. I issued a very thick report
on that, on that case,-you know, going down item
for item for item for item.

It was, also most of my casés, the
Roosevelt case was also very interestinq as well.

I heard a great many people who came forth
to testify who were very notable in the City of
Chicago and most of them were at least 90 years
old, to give you an example.

Nicholas is it, Revlon?

JUDGE HENRY: Helene Curtis.
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JUDGE JAFFE: He came out. He was 90 years old,
just as sharp as he could be and he sat there and

they asked him a guestion. ‘

They said, "What is your name?" He said
what his businéSs;was: They said, "Well, well, .
what do you do?"LHé:said, "I am retired.™

They said, "Well, what did you do before
you reﬁired?"-ﬁemsaid: "Well, I did a-lpt of .
things."

Henzéid, "Buf'mqstly,“ now we are f:iﬁing
about Helene Curtis, tpis-biq corporation, "But
mostlf i was in the t;ilet goods businesé."

Now you haven’t heard that term for a few
years. Now nobody, well, Helene Curtis in the
toilet goods business, but that’s what he called it
and he told how he sold, you know, these items
initially with ﬁig father and brother and how tﬁey
eventually went into business together. |

It was just fascinating. I had a case
that dealt with the Weinstein Funeral Home in which
one of the people got up and gave me the whole
history of the funeral business in the Jewish

community.

It was Jjust fascinating stuff. There is
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-- my father was as I told you was a tailor from

Poland always told me listen to everybody.

There’s something to' learn from everybody,

yoﬁ know. Talk to everybody and listen to

. everybody and be fespectful—dfneverybody and that

was -- that was Qreat adviceibecause if you listen
you hear amazing stories sometimes.

JUDGE HENRY: Did you find out why there was an

original Weinsteéin?

JUDGE JAFFE: Oh, sure, sure.

bs a matter of fact, as a métter of fact
%hey started out,in.the livery: bﬁéiness and then,it-
developed because they had the equipment, they
could do funerals, you see, and that’/s-how it
started out.

-It was a small group{bf people actually
and they branched out and tﬁey really =~ now. the
sad part of it is that most of the funeral chapels
and most of the cemeteries are not individually
owned at all.

There are very few that are. Most of them
are now under the umbrella of different
corporations and -- but that was, you know, but you

if you sit and you listen and businesses comne

- 56



10
11
12
13
14
“15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

beforéryou and people come before you When you
listen to them, I mean it's'a great deal of fun
because ﬁou learn and when I was in high?scﬁool, I
had a friend whose name was David Kaplan and David
was thé_émartest guy in the school. I

. He was smarter than the teacheré,lbut he

was not a guy who wound up at the top of the class

pecause it.was learning that was importantlfoghim,

. but not the grades, and I was someone who was

alwa&é sort éf having a good time aggnboofind‘
around and_heﬂsaid to me on one occasion, he said,
"You knoweyod have to get more éerious and y&ﬁ
have to settle down and you have to start studying
a little bit," and~I said to him, I said, "David I--
don’t have to do that. I am having so much fun,"
and he said because it is fun and I think he
convincéqrme that it’s fun to learn and‘I think
that, you know, when you are in a position of being
a judge and you are sitting on a bench and you are
listening to all these people and most good people
that cone before us are, you know, are basically
good people trying to do the best that they can.

You do get some bad apples, but you hear

their stories.
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I have a';ittle old lady who comes in to
see ne ﬁho happened tec be a homeless 1aéy and she
at the present time hasra suit against the City of
Chicago, the library, because they do not permit
her to use the facility in the library because they '
maintain that she bafhés in the library and so on
and so forth.

she coméé.in ﬁifh her cart carrying all.aft

her possessions with her and she tells -me this.

She went to law school and was a law clerk and T
believe her.

Sﬁe is polite. Jshe is nice. She is a
delight to listen to.

She respects me and I-respect her and as a
matter of fact I tried to settle the case by saying
to the City of Chicagd, "You have places you could
place this lady. ﬁhy is she out on the street? th
don’t you see?"

And the City went out and tried to place
her and they came back and they said, "Well, we do
have a place for her and she refuses to take it,"
because of the fact that she is so fearful.

She feels more comfortable on the street

than she does in a house because she is afraid that
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10

looking back, Aaron, just two questions really.

Has the practice of law changed

‘substantially since you got out of law school until

now? From your perspective from the bench has it

“,;changed a lot for better or worse?

That’s one question anq_what

recommendations would you make for the next 50

yearé that would help the préctice of law, serve

théwpublic better #f you don’t think it’s serving

it well now?
We can have you back
JUDGE JAFFE: Well, first

practice of law.

dramatically and I think it’s
things really and it’s due to

society.

again, Aaron.

let{me”talk about the

of law has changed
due to a lot of

the attitude of

Our society has voted for a computer

society and now I think we are really a mean

consumer society.

We have so much technology at us from

every place, you know.

Every family has to have 18 cars and 24

television sets and so on and
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_ become so materialistic in this country that I

think that we have lost some of-our human values

and educatien is too expensive in this coun@ry;
Kids, you know, I don’t think that eny kid

that Wante_ﬁougq_to school should be deprived of

school, but;let’s face it, schools are so expensive

today.

I don’t know if I were coming out efh'if 1
were coming out of high school--and were going into

colleqe;“i would'have never been able fELEffordrfhe

college educatlon that kids are requlred to have

- today and I thlnk that all of that impacts upon the

practice of law and the practice when I left law
school everybody dreamt about coming out of law
school and being like Clarence Darrow and helping
out, you know, humanity and doing things that were
good for sec;ety.

Of course, everyone needs a certain“amount
of money to live on. I am not saying don’t pay
lawyers.

I, you know, lawyers have to be paid and
they should be paid, but everything today has
become billable hours and I sit in that courtroom

and I see people coming into courtroom who really
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don’'t knqwrtheir client.

Aé-a lawyer I never charged anybody for a
phone call. As a matter of fact when my client
would leave me I would say to them if there’s
something boéhering ybu;givq me a call and we will
talk about i@,and I wili fell you about whethgr or
not you should be worried and I would take five
minutes if they calléé:. |

I:would, I_would'fﬁlk to them onnthe 

phone. No big deal?ﬂbut today and the clock is

" always running.

There is tremendou; pressure on the
students who come out, who go into practice because
they all have tremendous loan bills to pay off.

“The firms, especially the largest firms
work them to death doing stuff that I don’t think
necessarily develops gfeat lawyers, but. it’s stuff
that will get them billable hours.

Now when that happens to a profession such
as the law profession that’s a national tragedy I
think, because our profession should be attracting
the idealistical people who want to do something
for other people and did that.

That’s not the case and this is so, this
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" do for you, stuff like that.

'ign’t only the legal profession. I think there is

very little respect given to almost any
ins&ifution. t |

Medical professions were always held in
ﬂidh,es;eem. Today that’s not the éasei It’s not

the case and I think it’s, because qf all these

pressures.

You can’t get to talk to'Ehe d6ctor. The

doctor sees you. He is regulated as to what he can

_MI-think that one of these days we.are
going t; have to have a major change;inﬂéhe way we
think and the way we do things.

JUDGE HENRY: What would you suggest? Is .that a
subject for, a subject for another day?

“JUDGE JAFFE: I think it probably will be a
sﬁbject for another day.

JUDGE HENRY: We will have you back. You think
about that. We will have you back. Jim has one
other final gquestion to ask.

JUDGE FLANNERY: The only guestion was knowing
that your children and grandchildren are going to

be reading this and friends and family, what else

would you want to say?
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Any‘message you want to give to your
children and. qrandchlldren or anythlng vou want to
say that you thlnk they should know or they should
hear?

%JUDGE JA?FE‘ Well, you know, gquite truthfdlly‘
I spend a lot of time with my grandchlldren and my
children.

Leﬁiﬁé téli you what I do ﬁith my,iﬁh;t i
have done with thé%older grandchildren and what T

am doing with one of'them now. o
I try to at least one Sunday per month to
take them and go 1nto different nelghborhoods of.

the Ccity to see how other people live because

basically my kids, my grandkids are suburban kids,

“but to give you an idea, last Sunday I took my

grandson, Esra, he is 15 now and able to do that
and appreciaté.i

We went to Devon Avenue which as you kgow
there, Devon Avenue is like an international city,
but we went from Western Avenue to California and
that area 1is basically Fast Indian and we went into
all the stores and went into the grocery stores and

bakeries and actually we didn’t eat there, for one

reason, I forgot, but we usually eat in the other
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areas, but I'try to take him into another, every
area of the city so they can meet other people and
see that there is something to be learned from

their culture and basically people are all the same

~and that. ” P

We go in and we talk. We talk to

storekeepers. We talk to whoever we have to talk

" to and it’s great:fun and it’$ great fun and he

loves to do it, you know.

Prior we were at Chinatown. We went to

the Pilsen area and we will be going, you know,

every place that ﬁe can possibl& go and he looks
forward to it and I love to.

e I look forward to it because., you know,
being with my grandson and exploring, nobody will
do that for me, because I enjoy it perhaps more
than he does, but he told me next time out he wants
to go to Little Ttaly. ”

So we will go to Little Italy, but before
we will try to get us into as many neighborhoods as
we possibly can.

JUDGE HENRY: Take him down to Bridgeport and
show him the throne where the mayor lives, the seat

of all power.
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- JUDGE JAFFE: We will be everywhere we can be.
JUDGE HENRY: Thank ydu very much, Aaron, for
your time. !

You have been very interestinj and I think
this“ié-go;ng to be a worthwile, worthwhile part of
the hiétéry and these transq;ipts.

I will review them once, when you get it
to ﬁevand-ﬁive them all baék,:very féﬁhcqfréctions
and thgn'f:will talk to you égain.

o | (WHICH WERE ALL THE PROCEEDINGS
HAD IN THE ABOVE-ENTITLED éAUSE

e

ON THIS DATE.)

66



10
11
12

i3

i5
is
17
18
1¢
20
21
22
23

24

STATE OF ILLINOIS )
} 88:

COUNTY OF C 0 O K ')

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS " . |

COUNTY DEPARTMENT - Law Division |

1, JOYEEyLEDGéR, official Court Reporter
of the Circuit Court of Cook County,-County
Department - ;;w DlVlSlon, do hereby certify that I
reported 1n stenotype the proceedings on thls date;
that.I thereafter caused the foregoing to be

transcribed into typewriting, which I certify to be

a true and accurate transcript.

) i -
TS L S’L&—ﬂ%("%

e

A"‘/

3

bif%cial Court Reporter

084-001292

Dated this \fxgh\ day
of \ﬂgwﬁ“ﬁ“‘hkwLﬂ_ 2004
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